




Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2019/20Balances through February

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 288,697.00 295,339.00 121,510.80 181,051.88 7,223.68-Teachers Salaries

1115 250.00 470.00 70.00 400.00 Certificated Extra Duty

1120 12,325.00 11,268.00 6,510.00 4,758.00 Certificated Substitutes

1200 30,561.00 30,561.00 10,186.92 20,373.84 .24 Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 260,757.00 260,795.00 61,768.46 145,506.47 53,520.07 Certificated Supervisor Admini

1310 10,000.00 10,000.00 1,000.00 9,000.00 Teacher in Charge

Total for Object 1000 602,590.00 608,433.00 193,466.18 354,512.19 60,454.63 

2100 196,300.00 163,755.00 45,405.75 78,438.24 39,911.01 Instructional Aides' Salaries

2115 1,000.00 1,000.00 566.51 433.49 Classified Extra Duty

2120 7,755.00 7,570.00 2,547.46 5,022.54 Classified Substitutes

2200 28,846.00 37,342.00 4,658.03 10,200.27 22,483.70 Classified Support Salaries

2215 1,000.00 1,000.00 591.89 408.11 Classified Support Extra Duty

2220 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Classified Substitute Salaries

2300 104,378.00 114,719.00 34,492.00 69,524.00 10,703.00 Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 127,065.00 128,933.00 42,584.67 83,119.56 3,228.77 Clerical Technical Office Staf

2420 250.00 250.00 250.00 Clerical Substiture

2900 9,000.00 15,960.00 7,091.00 8,869.00 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 476,594.00 471,529.00 127,140.45 252,078.93 92,309.62 

3101 122,401.00 172,064.00 33,082.72 57,574.88 81,406.40 STRS Certificated Positions

3102 803.00 23,823.00 329.12 963.93 22,529.95 STRS Classified Positions

3201 244.54 244.54-PERS Certificated Positions

3202 89,597.00 86,159.00 24,876.52 47,284.43 13,998.05 PERS Classified Positions

3301 932.00 7.00 107.88 100.88-OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 27,727.00 28,451.00 7,666.08 15,102.92 5,682.00 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 8,344.00 8,480.00 2,687.68 4,924.69 867.63 Medicare Certificated Position

3312 6,814.00 6,726.00 1,820.87 3,618.00 1,287.13 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 108,577.00 78,635.00 36,288.28 60,925.90 18,579.18-Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 84,444.00 100,036.00 39,229.92 69,429.34 8,623.26-Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 300.00 303.00 96.80 178.56 27.64 SUI Certificated

3502 239.00 236.00 63.60 124.17 48.23 SUI Classified

3601 19,262.00 19,575.00 6,575.12 11,778.94 1,220.94 Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 15,378.00 15,527.00 4,454.28 8,659.51 2,413.21 Workers' Compensation Classifi

3902 13,250.00 6,624.00 6,626.00 Golden Handshake-Class

Total for Object 3000 484,818.00 553,272.00 157,170.99 287,541.69 108,559.32 

4100 460.00 1,924.00 1,924.00 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2020, Period = 8, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Mar  3 2020  6:41AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1115
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2115
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2215
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2220
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2420
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3201
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3902
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2019/20Balances through February

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

4200 1,000.00 1,000.00 Library and Reference Material

4300 42,512.00 63,599.00 4,784.93 15,796.99 43,017.08 Materials and Supplies

4320 500.00 676.00 36.21 626.70 13.09 Custodial Grounds Supplies

4330 1,000.00 1,000.00 631.55 368.45 Office Supplies

4350 6,000.00 5,500.00 1,343.61 2,324.49 1,831.90 Vehicle Upkeep

4399 277.00 277.00 Mat & Sup Undesignated Bal

4400 17,849.00 19,976.00 6,269.62 13,706.38 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 68,321.00 93,952.00 6,164.75 25,649.35 62,137.90 

5100 43,000.00 43,000.00 43,000.00 Subagreements for Services

5200 47,304.00 35,583.00 5,041.00 10,224.52 20,317.48 Travel and Conference

5300 20,438.00 14,305.00 569.96 14,502.58 767.54-Dues and Membership

5400 11,000.00 11,000.00 10,297.92 702.08 Insurance

5500 11,500.00 14,500.00 3,635.16 2,696.58 8,168.26 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 3,100.00 1,850.00 376.65 1,246.17 227.18 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5801 30,500.00 18,000.00 9,450.00 550.00 8,000.00 Legal Services

5803 500.00 .00 Legal Publications

5805 842.00 242.00 200.00 42.00 Personnel Expense

5806 1,000.00 .00 Negotiations

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 424.89 1,075.11 .00 Other Services & Fees

5810 443,765.00 491,877.00 200,501.57 190,682.03 100,693.40 Contracted Services

5899 1,021.17 3,177.52 4,198.69-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 10,500.00 10,500.00 3,092.32 6,935.06 472.62 Communications

Total for Object 5000 624,949.00 642,357.00 224,312.72 241,387.49 176,656.79 

6200 26,516.00 1,000.00 25,516.00 .00 Building and Improvement of Bu

6400 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 Equipment

6500 15,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 Equipment Replacement

Total for Object 6000 35,000.00 61,516.00 1,000.00 25,516.00 35,000.00 

7110 5,501.00 19,958.25 19,958.25-County Tuition Inter Dist Agre

7141 24,428.00 24,428.00 24,428.00 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 29,929.00 24,428.00 .00 19,958.25 4,469.75 

539,588.01 2,322,201.00 2,455,487.00 709,255.09 1,206,643.90 Total for Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Fund 11 - ADULT ED   

1100 35,000.00 1,540.08 33,459.92 Teachers Salaries

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2020, Period = 8, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Mar  3 2020  6:41AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4399
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5803
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5806
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7110
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=1100


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2019/20Balances through February

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 11 - ADULT ED    (continued)

1300 89,732.00 89,732.00 29,910.68 23,945.94 35,875.38 Certificated Supervisor Admini

Total for Object 1000 89,732.00 124,732.00 29,910.68 25,486.02 69,335.30 

2100 5,684.00 6,000.00 75.56 5,924.44 Instructional Aides' Salaries

2200 17,052.00 511.96 16,540.04 Classified Support Salaries

Total for Object 2000 5,684.00 23,052.00 .00 587.52 22,464.48 

3101 15,344.00 26,529.00 5,114.72 4,170.39 17,243.89 STRS Certificated Positions

3202 1,179.00 4,556.00 14.90 4,541.10 PERS Classified Positions

3301 68.06 68.06-OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 352.00 1,429.00 31.74 1,397.26 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 1,301.00 1,809.00 433.72 369.56 1,005.72 Medicare Certificated Position

3312 82.00 334.00 8.52 325.48 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 12,767.00 12,767.00 4,255.60 3,191.70 5,319.70 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3501 45.00 63.00 14.96 12.75 35.29 SUI Certificated

3502 3.00 12.00 .30 11.70 SUI Classified

3601 3,004.00 4,176.00 1,061.00 842.13 2,272.87 Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 190.00 772.00 20.69 751.31 Workers' Compensation Classifi

Total for Object 3000 34,267.00 52,447.00 10,880.00 8,730.74 32,836.26 

4100 10,000.00 7,500.00 3,738.99 3,761.01 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4300 5,000.00 4,700.00 619.27 573.77 3,506.96 Materials and Supplies

4320 5,000.00 229.45 990.19 3,780.36 Custodial Grounds Supplies

4330 300.00 300.00 Office Supplies

4350 1,184.22 1,184.22- .00 Vehicle Upkeep

4400 2,132.00 16,000.00 16,080.87 80.87-Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 17,132.00 33,500.00 2,032.94 20,199.60 11,267.46 

5200 15,000.00 10,000.00 1,430.75 2,880.23 5,689.02 Travel and Conference

5203 1,000.00 5,000.00 1,619.94 3,380.06 MILEAGE

5300 250.00 1,000.00 1,870.00 870.00-Dues and Membership

5500 2,500.00 13,000.00 1,915.85 1,583.77- 12,667.92 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 2,500.00 1,295.00 468.00- 1,673.00 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5801 1,000.00 1,000.00 Legal Services

5810 40,000.00 35,925.00 14,143.79 21,781.21 Contracted Services

5900 258.70 527.40 786.10-Communications

Total for Object 5000 58,750.00 68,425.00 4,900.30 18,989.59 44,535.11 

6200 100,000.00 81,618.61 18,381.39 Building and Improvement of Bu

6400 22,500.00 60,000.00 5,448.30 26,553.95 27,997.75 Equipment

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2020, Period = 8, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 3 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Mar  3 2020  6:41AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5203
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=6400


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2019/20Balances through February

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 11 - ADULT ED    (continued)

Total for Object 6000 22,500.00 160,000.00 5,448.30 108,172.56 46,379.14 

7619 935.00 1,192.00 853.83 338.17 Other Authorized Interfund Tra

227,155.92 229,000.00 463,348.00 53,172.22 183,019.86 Total for Fund 11 and Expense accounts

Fund 16 - FOREST RES   

7211 6,253.72 6,253.72-Transfers of Pass-through Rev

7619 52,121.00 52,121.00 1,103.60 51,017.40 Other Authorized Interfund Tra

44,763.68 52,121.00 52,121.00 .00 7,357.32 Total for Fund 16, Expense accounts and Object 7000

811,507.61 2,603,322.00 2,970,956.00 762,427.31 1,397,021.08 Total for Org 001 - Sierra County Office of Education

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2020, Period = 8, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 4 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Mar  3 2020  6:41AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=7619
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7211
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116545&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7619


1 

SCOE Minutes 

February 11, 2020 

MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

February 11, 2020 

Downieville School, 130 School St, Downieville CA 95936 
Videoconferenced to Sierra County Office of Education, Room 4, 109 Beckwith Rd, Loyalton CA 96118 

5:30pm Closed Session 

6:00pm Regular Session 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

President PATTY HALL called the meeting to order at 5:34pm. 

B. ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Patty Hall, President 

  Nicole Stannard, Vice President 

Allen Wright, Clerk 

  Mike Moore, Member 

  Jenny Gant, Member 

ABSENT: None 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

JACOBSEN: Add item “f” to Superintendent Report – Action Item “g” from the District agenda. 

GANT motioned to approve the agenda with the stated change. Second by MOORE. 

5/0 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR CLOSED SESSION 

1. Current location – none 

2. Videoconference location – none 

E. CLOSED SESSION 

MOORE/STANNARD 

5/0 

The Board of Trustees, Superintendent James Berardi and Business Manager Nona Griesert 

moved into Closed Session at 5:34pm to discuss the following item(s): 

1. Government Code 54957.6 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

Agency Negotiator for the Board: James Berardi, Superintendent 

Employee Organizations: 

 Unrepresented Employees:  Sierra-Plumas Teachers’ Association 

Classified Employees 

     Confidential Employees 

     Administrative Employees 

F. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION at 5:48pm and ADJOURN FOR BREAK 

G. 6:01PM – RECONVENE 

H. FLAG SALUTE 

I. REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

MOORE: Discussion only and direction given to Superintendent. 

J. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

1. Superintendent’s Report 

a. Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) Training update 



2 

SCOE Minutes 

February 11, 2020 

BERARDI: Recently attended a second LCAP Training conference with the 

Administrators. More productive this time around with the new template 

available at the training. 

JONES: Useable material that will make for a more high-quality LCAP. 

Foresee more stakeholder engagement and a more complete mutual plan to use 

as a guide for future decision making. 

b. California County Superintendents Educational Services Association 

(CCSESA) Quarterly Meeting Report 

BERARDI: Secure Rural Schools has been a big discussion item among County 

Superintendents. Will continue working towards getting this back as long-term 

funding. 

c. 2020 Census 

BERARDI: The Census can have a huge impact on funding for schools, so it’s 

important that we get people to help out with the 2020 Census data jobs!! 

There are two reps here that will discuss this further during Public Comment. 

d. Update on Aides in Downieville 

BERARDI: Held interviews recently to fill the positions needed and they have 

been filled, but there may be some shifts/movement with these positions due to 

changes in student needs coming from IEPs. 

e. Planning for Special Meeting due to potential layoffs 

BERARDI: Any Lay-Off Letters must go out by March 15th. Meeting with Sue 

Roberts Thursday 2/13/20 at 10am to go over the process.  

Board looking to tentatively meet on March 10th at about 4pm on the same day 

as the regular Board meetings. 

f. Assignment of Camille Alfred, Friday Night Live (FNL) and Club Live Advisor, 

Loyalton High School, 2019-2020 

2. Business Report 

a. Account Object Summary-Balance from 07/01/2019 to 01/31/2020 

3. Staff Reports 

a. SELPA—BETHKE: Reflecting on the great staff we have in the Special Ed 

area with all of the focus on policies, procedures and compliance. Want to 

acknowledge the great job they are doing in Loyalton and Downieville 

adapting to all of the changes that keep coming their way. 

4. Board Member Reports 

None 

5. Public Comment 

a. Current location – 

2020 Census Representatives/Recruiters—58 out of 69 positions hired for Sierra 

County to gather Census data. $18/hour plus mileage ($.58/mile). Paid training 

and paid weekly. Census forms will start going out mid-March. Important to get 

as accurate of a count as possible to potentially improve funding for Sierra 

County. Approximately 8-week job – may extend into August.  

b. Videoconference location – none 

K. CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Approval of minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held January 14, 2020 

2. Approval of Board Report-Checks Dated 01/01/2020 through 01/31/2020 

3. Authorization to Submit Consolidated Application 

MOORE/WRIGHT 

5/0 



3 

SCOE Minutes 

February 11, 2020 

L. ACTION ITEMS 

1. New Business  

a. Approval of third Federal Addendum to the 2019-2020 Local Control 

Accountability Plan, final revise approved by CDE 01/28/2020 

MOORE/GANT 

5/0 

b. Approval of 2018-19 Sierra County Office of Education Special Education 

School Accountability Report Card 

TABLED TO MARCH MEETING 

BOARD POLICIES, ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS, EXHIBITS, BOARD BYLAWS 

c. 2121—Superintendent’s Contract 

1. Board Policy, revisions 

TABLED TO MARCH MEETING 

Send out Superintendent’s current contract for Board to review alongside the 

policy. 

 

d. 3600—Consultants 

1. Board Policy, revisions 

MOORE/GANT 

5/0 

e. 4030—Nondiscrimination in Employment 

1. Administrative Regulation, revisions 

GANT/MOORE 

5/0 

f. 4033—Lactation Accommodation 

1. Board Policy, NEW 

GANT/HALL 

5/0 

g. 4151/4251/4351—Employee Compensation 

1. Board Policy, revisions 

MOORE/STANNARD 

5/0 

h. 6143—Courses of Study 

1. Board Policy, revisions 

2. Administrative Regulation, revisions 

MOORE/HALL 

4/1 (GANT) 

i. 6154—Homework/Makeup Work 

1. Board Policy, revisions 

MOORE motioned to approve policy with removal of paragraph 5 on 

page 1. Second by HALL. 

5/0 

j. 6174—Education for English Learners 

1. Administrative Regulation, revisions 

GANT/MOORE 

5/0 

k. 6175—Migrant Education Program 

1. Administrative Regulation, NEW 

MOORE/HALL 

5/0 



4 

SCOE Minutes 

February 11, 2020 

M. ADVANCED PLANNING 

1. Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on March 10, 2020 at Sierra County Office of 

Education, Room 4, 109 Beckwith Rd, Loyalton CA 96118, beginning with Closed 

Session as needed at 5:00pm and the Regular Board Meeting at 6:00pm. 

**Tentative Special Meeting starting at 4:00pm. 

2. Suggested Agenda Items 

None 

 

N. ADJOURN at 6:53pm 

MOORE/GANT 

5/0 

 

 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

Allen Wright, Clerk     James Berardi, Superintendent 

       Secretary to the County Board of Education 

  





Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 02/01/2020 through 02/29/2020

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00015548 02/11/2020 AT&T 11-5900 PHONE 78.90 

00015549 02/11/2020 CIT 01-5900 PHONE SYSTEM/MAINTENANCE 773.08 

00015550 02/11/2020 BUTTE-GLENN COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 11-5200 WEBINAR 170.00 

00015551 02/11/2020 CWDL CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 01-9500 AUDIT FEES 7,997.50 

01-9515 AUDIT FEES 799.75- 7,197.75 

00015552 02/11/2020 ESD CONSTRUCTION, INC 01-6200 SOLAR INSTALLATION 7,716.00 

SOLAR MAINTENANCE 9,000.00 16,716.00 

00015553 02/11/2020 ANNA GOODWIN 01-5810 NURSE SERVICES 1,960.00 

00015554 02/11/2020 JANIS HARDEMAN 01-5810 NURSE SERVICES 280.00 

00015555 02/11/2020 JANE V. LEE, M.A., LMFT 01-5810 COUNSELING SERVICES 1,755.60 

00015556 02/11/2020 LES SCHAWB 11-4350 SNOW TIRES 768.05 

00015557 02/11/2020 LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 405.38 

11-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 252.07 657.45 

00015558 02/11/2020 MARY LOWE 01-5810 COUNSELING SERVICES 3,135.00 

00015559 02/11/2020 LESLIE MARSDEN, MOT, OTR/L 01-5810 OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY SERVICES 2,830.00 

00015560 02/11/2020 MARLENE MONGOLO 01-4350 MILEAGE 56.35 

00015561 02/11/2020 OFFICE DEPOT 11-4300 OFFICE SUPPLIES 319.81 

00015562 02/11/2020 PITNEY BOWES, INC. 01-5600 POSTAGE MACHINE LEASE 23.50 

01-5899 POSTAGE MACHINE LEASE 70.52 94.02 

00015563 02/11/2020 PLUMAS-SIERRA TELECOMMUNICATIONS 11-5600 BROADBAND SERVICE 109.00 

00015564 02/11/2020 POSITIVE BEHAVIOR CHANGES, LLC 01-5810 CONSULTATION SERVICES 510.00 

00015565 02/11/2020 RAY MORGAN COMPANY 01-5600 COPIER MAINT. 5.00 

00015566 02/11/2020 READ NATURALLY 01-4300 INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES 920.00 

00015567 02/11/2020 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 01-5808 BANK SERVICE FEES 30.00 

00015568 02/11/2020 SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-4300 SHOP SUPPLIES 1,394.28 

00015569 02/11/2020 TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INSURANCE GROUP 01-9535 FEB 20 HEALTH INSURANCE 2,159.00 

76-9576 FEB 20 HEALTH INSURANCE 17,318.90 19,477.90 

00015570 02/11/2020 U.S. BANK 01-4300 BEHAVIOR ASSESSMENT 57.92 

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES 186.78 

01-5200 SUPT. TRAVEL EXPENSES 1,023.67 1,268.37 

00015571 02/11/2020 VOYAGER 01-4350 FUEL EXPENSE 57.66 

01-5200 FUEL EXPENSE 41.95 

01-5899 FUEL EXPENSE 20.85 

11-5200 FUEL EXPENSE 70.45 190.91 

00015572 02/11/2020 ALLEN WRIGHT 01-5200 PER DIEM 21.57 

00015573 02/28/2020 ACCREDITING COMMISSION FOR SCHOOLS 11-5300 ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP FEE 1,070.00 

00015574 02/28/2020 AT&T 11-5900 PHONE 76.30 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Mar  3 2020  6:38AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 02/01/2020 through 02/29/2020

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00015575 02/28/2020 DETROIT SIGN FACTORY 11-4300 PROMO MATERIALS 985.80 

00015576 02/28/2020 DOUBLETREE HOTEL SONOMA WINE COUNTRY 01-5200 HOTEL 444.12 

00015577 02/28/2020 EL DORADO COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 01-5200 REGISTRATION 75.00 

01-5899 REGISTRATION 225.00 300.00 

00015578 02/28/2020 GIRARD, EDWARDS, STEVENS & TUCKER LLP 01-5801 LEGAL FEES 550.00 

00015579 02/28/2020 WENDY JACKSON 11-5200 PER DIEM 121.00 

00015580 02/28/2020 PHOENIX DESIGN C/O SANDER PHOENIX 11-4300 PROMO MATERIALS 1,000.00 

00015581 02/28/2020 PRESENCELEARNING, INC. 01-5810 PRESENCE LEARNING 16,848.89 

00015582 02/28/2020 SCHOOL SERV OF CALIFORNIA INC. 01-5200 WORKSHOP REGISTRATIONS 26.25 

01-5899 WORKSHOP REGISTRATIONS 78.75 105.00 

00015583 02/28/2020 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 01-5808 BANK SERVICE FEES 100.25 

00015584 02/28/2020 WORKABILITY I, REGION 3 01-5200 REGISTRATION 125.00 

Total Number of Checks 37 82,445.40 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

County School Service Fund 27 60,105.12 01

ADULT EDUCATION 12 5,021.38 11

Payroll Clearing 1 17,318.90 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 37 82,445.40 

.00 

82,445.40 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Mar  3 2020  6:38AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Sierra County Special Education Page 1 of 11 

 

 

Sierra County Special Education 

School Accountability Report Card 

Reported Using Data from the 2018-19 School Year 

Published During 2019-20 

 

 
By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to publish a School Accountability Report 
Card (SARC). The SARC contains information about the condition and performance of each California public school. Under 
the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies (LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control and 
Accountability Plan (LCAP), which describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with 
specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data 
reported in the SARC. 
 
• For more information about SARC requirements, see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 
• For more information about the LCFF or LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 
• For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community members should contact the school 

principal or the district office. 
 
DataQuest 
DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that 
contains additional information about this school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, 
DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test data, enrollment, high school graduates, 
dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data regarding English learners). 
 
Internet Access 
Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly accessible (e.g., the California State 
Library). Access to the Internet at libraries and public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis. 
Other use restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a workstation may be used (depending 
on availability), the types of software programs available on a workstation, and the ability to print documents. 
 

About This School 
 

School Contact Information (School Year 2019-20) 

Entity Contact Information 

School Name Sierra County Special Education 

Street 109 Beckwith Street 

City, State, Zip Loyalton, CA  96118 

Phone Number 530-993-1660 

Principal Heidi Bethke 

Email Address hbethke@spjusd.org 

Website www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org 

County-District-School (CDS) Code 46104626077267 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/


2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Sierra County Special Education Page 2 of 11 

Entity Contact Information 

District Name Sierra County Office of Education 

Phone Number 530-993-1660 

Superintendent James Berardi 

Email Address jberardi@spjusd.org 

Website www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org 

 
 

School Description and Mission Statement (School Year 2019-20) 

 
Our mission is to provide a primary education with a goal of all children achieving literacy.  We provide children with the 
tools to encourage their total development, enhance their self-esteem and realize their potential in a safe, secure 
environment. 
 
Sierra County Office of Education Special Education serves Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District students.  Please see 
individual Sierra-Plumas school sites' School Accountability Report Card for more detail. 
 
Sierra County Office of Education students include students who attend school in the State of Nevada and are reported as 
out-of-state students.  Therefore, no data is reflected for those students in this report. 
 
Sierra County Special Education student population is fewer than 10, therefore no data is reflected for those students in 
this report. Students attending Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District are listed under the enrollment of their 
respective schools. 
 
 

Student Enrollment by Grade Level (School Year 2018-19) 

Grade Level Number of Students 

Kindergarten         

 

Student Enrollment by Group (School Year 2018-19) 

Student Group Percent of Total Enrollment 

Homeless         

 
 

A. Conditions of Learning 

 

State Priority: Basic 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic (Priority 1): 
• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they 

are teaching; 
• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and 
• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
 



2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Sierra County Special Education Page 3 of 11 

Teacher Credentials 

Teachers 
School 

2017-18 
School 

2018-19 
School 

2019-20 
District 
2019-20 

With Full Credential 4 4   

Without Full Credential 0 0   

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence (with full credential) 0 0   

 

Teacher Misassignments and Vacant Teacher Positions 

Indicator 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Misassignments of Teachers of English Learners 0 0  

Total Teacher Misassignments* 0 0  

Vacant Teacher Positions 0 0  
Note: “Misassignments” refers to the number of positions filled by teachers who lack legal authorization to teach that grade level, subject area, student group, etc. 
*Total Teacher Misassignments includes the number of Misassignments of Teachers of English Learners. 
 

Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Instructional Materials (School Year 2019-20) 
 
Year and month in which data were collected: N/A 
 
Sierra County Office of Education Special Education serves Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District students. Those 
students use textbooks issued by their school of enrollment.  Please see the sections on Textbooks within the individual 
Sierra-Plumas school sites' School Accountability Report Card for more detail. 
 

Subject 
Textbooks and Other Instructional 

Materials/year of Adoption 

From Most 
Recent 

Adoption? 

Percent Students 
Lacking Own 

Assigned Copy 

Reading/Language Arts          n/a 

Mathematics          n/a 

Science          n/a 

History-Social Science          n/a 

Foreign Language          n/a 

Health          n/a 

Visual and Performing Arts          n/a 

Science Laboratory Equipment 
(grades 9-12) 

         n/a 

 
 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements (Most Recent Year) 

 
To determine the condition of our facilities, our district performs an annual inspection using the Facilities Inspection Tool 
which is issued by the Office of Public School Construction. 
Based on that survey we've answered the questions you see on this report. Please note that the information reflects the 
condition of our building as of the date of the report.  Since that time, those conditions may have changed. 
 
 



2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Sierra County Special Education Page 4 of 11 

School Facility Good Repair Status (Most Recent Year) 
Using the most recently collected FIT data (or equivalent), provide the following: 

• Determination of repair status for systems listed 
• Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair 
• The year and month in which the data were collected 
• The overall rating 

 
Year and month of the most recent FIT report: February 2020 
 

System Inspected Rating Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned 

Systems: Gas Leaks, 
Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

XGood        
 

 

Interior: Interior Surfaces XGood        
 

 

Cleanliness: Overall Cleanliness, 
Pest/ Vermin Infestation 

XGood        
 

 

Electrical: Electrical XGood        
 

 

Restrooms/Fountains: Restrooms, 
Sinks/ Fountains 

XGood        
 

 

Safety: Fire Safety, Hazardous 
Materials 

XGood        
 

 

Structural: Structural Damage, 
Roofs 

XGood        
 

 

External: Playground/School 
Grounds, Windows/ 
Doors/Gates/Fences 

XGood        
 

 

Overall Rating XExemplary        
 

 

 
 



2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Sierra County Special Education Page 5 of 11 

B. Pupil Outcomes 

 

State Priority: Pupil Achievement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Achievement (Priority 4): 
• Statewide assessments (i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System, which 

includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the general education population and the 
California Alternate Assessments [CAAs] for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three 
through eight and grade eleven. Only eligible students may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items 
are aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for 
students with the most significant cognitive disabilities); and 

• The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to 
the University of California and the California State University, or career technical education sequences or programs 
of study. 

 

CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

Subject 
School 

2017-18 
School 

2018-19 
District 
2017-18 

District 
2018-19 

State 
2017-18 

State 
2018-19 

English Language Arts/Literacy  
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

      

Mathematics  
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

      

 
Note: Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical 
accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
Note: ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the 
total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard 
(i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 

 

CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2018-19) 

Student Group 
Total  

Enrollment 
Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent  
Not  

Tested 

Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students      

Black or African American       

American Indian or Alaska Native      

Filipino      

Hispanic or Latino      

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander      

Two or More Races      

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged      

English Learners      

Students with Disabilities       



2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Sierra County Special Education Page 6 of 11 

Student Group 
Total  

Enrollment 
Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent  
Not  

Tested 

Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services      

Foster Youth      

Homeless      

 
Note: ELA test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA.  The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of 
students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved 
Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Note: Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical 
accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
Note: The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, the number of students tested 
is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement level percentages are calculated using only students who received 
scores. 

 

CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2018-19) 

Student Group 
Total  

Enrollment 
Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent  
Not  

Tested 

Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students      

Black or African American       

American Indian or Alaska Native      

Filipino      

Hispanic or Latino      

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander      

Two or More Races      

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged      

English Learners      

Students with Disabilities       

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services      

Foster Youth      

Homeless      

 
Note: Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total 
number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., 
achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 

 
Note: Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical 
accuracy or to protect student privacy. 

 
Note: The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, the number of students tested 
is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement level percentages are calculated using only students who received 
scores. 
 



2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Sierra County Special Education Page 7 of 11 

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 
Grades Five, Eight, and Ten 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

Subject 
School 

2017-18 
School 

2018-19 
District 
2017-18 

District 
2018-19 

State 
2017-18 

State 
2018-19 

Science (grades 5, 8 and high school) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: This is a placeholder for the California Science Test (CAST) which was administered operationally during the 2018-19 school year. However, these data are not 
available for inclusion in the 2018-19 SARC posting due February 1, 2020. These data will be included in the 2019-20 SARC posting due February 1, 2021. 

 

Career Technical Education Programs (School Year 2018-19) 

 
Sierra County Office of Education Special Education serves Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District students. Please see 
Sierra-Plumas individual school sites' School Accountability Report Card for more detail. 
 

Career Technical Education Participation (School Year 2018-19) 

Measure 
CTE Program 
Participation 

Number of Pupils Participating in CTE  

Percent of Pupils that Complete a CTE Program and Earn a High School Diploma  

Percent of CTE Courses that are Sequenced or Articulated Between the School and Institutions of 
Postsecondary Education 

 

 

Courses for University of California (UC) and/or California State University (CSU) Admission 

UC/CSU Course Measure Percent 

2018-19 Pupils Enrolled in Courses Required for UC/CSU Admission  

2017-18 Graduates Who Completed All Courses Required for UC/CSU Admission  

 
 

State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8): 
 
• Pupil outcomes in the subject areas of physical education. 
 

California Physical Fitness Test Results (School Year 2018-19) 

Grade Level 
Percentage of Students 

Meeting Four of Six 
Fitness Standards 

Percentage of Students 
Meeting Five of Six 
Fitness Standards 

Percentage of Students 
Meeting Six of Six 
Fitness Standards 

   5       
Note: Percentages are not calculated and double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of 
students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.  Sierra County Office of Education Special Education serves Sierra-Plumas 
Joint Unified School District students. Please see Sierra-Plumas individual school sites' School Accountability Report Card for more detail. 
 



2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Sierra County Special Education Page 8 of 11 

C. Engagement 

 

State Priority: Parental Involvement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental Involvement (Priority 3): 
 
• Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and each school site. 
 

Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2019-20) 

 
Sierra County Office of Education welcomes parental involvement. This process is altered each year in accordance with 
student attendance, parent schedules and district school parent involvement activities. Parents are most involved with 
their children at their individual sites. 
 

State Priority: Pupil Engagement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Engagement (Priority 5): 
 
• High school dropout rates; and 
• High school graduation rates. 
 

Dropout Rate and Graduation Rate (Four-Year Cohort Rate) 

Indicator 
School 

2015-16 
School 

2016-17 
School 

2017-18 
District 
2015-16 

District 
2016-17 

District 
2017-18 

State 
2015-16 

State 
2016-17 

State 
2017-18 

Dropout Rate          

Graduation Rate          
For the formula to calculate the 2016-17 and 2017-18 adjusted cohort graduation rate, see the 2018-19 Data Element Definitions document located on the SARC web 
page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

 

State Priority: School Climate 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School Climate (Priority 6): 
 
• Pupil suspension rates; 
• Pupil expulsion rates; and 
• Other local measures on the sense of safety. 
 

Suspensions and Expulsions 

Rate 
School 

2016-17 
School 

2017-18 
School 

2018-19 
District 
2016-17 

District 
2017-18 

District 
2018-19 

State 
2016-17 

State 
2017-18 

State 
2018-19 

Suspensions          

Expulsions          

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/


2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Sierra County Special Education Page 9 of 11 

School Safety Plan (School Year 2019-20) 

 
Sierra County Office of Education is situated in a small rural town.  Staff members remain vigilant during school breaks 
and before and after school each day.  Being very small and intimate, the staff is very familiar with all of the parents, 
guardians and other family members of the children.  The school building is situated securely between Loyalton 
Elementary School and the District Office Complex. All visitors are asked to check in at the school office, and regular school 
volunteers are screened.   Our Safety Plan is based on the National Emergency Management System and is reviewed by 
the Board of Education annually. The plan covers emergency action procedures and general crisis management for 
potential situations in the classroom, outside the building and while on school buses.  The School Safety Plan is reviewed 
annually by the administrators and the Board of Education.   The school runs practice safety drills (fire, earthquake, 
intruder) several times a year on a surprise basis to monitor the effectiveness of each drill. This includes a week-long safety 
training for all staff and students. 
 

D. Other SARC Information 

 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the state priorities for LCFF. 
 

Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Elementary) 

Grade 
Level 

2016-17 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2016-17 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2016-17 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2016-17 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2017-18 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2018-19 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

  Other** 
 

            
*Number of classes indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). 
** “Other” category is for multi-grade level classes. 

 

Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary) 

Subject 

2016-17 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2016-17 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-22 

2016-17 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

23-32 

2016-17 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2017-18 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-22 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

23-32 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2018-19 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-22 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

23-32 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

Mathematics             

Social Science             
*Number of classes indicates how many classrooms fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this information 
is reported by subject area rather than grade level. 

 

Ratio of Academic Counselors to Pupils (School Year 2018-19) 

Title Ratio 

Academic Counselors* 0 
*One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

 

Student Support Services Staff (School Year 2018-19) 

Title 
Number of FTE* 

Assigned to School 

Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development) .5 

Library Media Teacher (Librarian) 0 

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional) 0 



2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Sierra County Special Education Page 10 of 11 

Title 
Number of FTE* 

Assigned to School 

Psychologist .6 

Social Worker 0 

Nurse        .5 

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 1 

Resource Specialist (non-teaching) 0 

Other        .5 
*One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

 

Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries (Fiscal Year 2017-18) 

Level 
Total 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Restricted) 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Unrestricted) 

Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site n/a n/a n/a n/a 

District N/A N/A n/a 62,394 

Percent Difference - School Site and District N/A N/A n/a n/a 

State N/A N/A   

Percent Difference - School Site and State N/A N/A n/a n/a 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
The California Department of Education issued guidance to LEAs on August 1, 2018, regarding how to calculate school-level per-pupil expenditures that will be 
reported on 2018-19 report cards. 

 

Types of Services Funded (Fiscal Year 2018-19) 

 
Sierra County Office of Education Special Education serves Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District students.  Please see 
Sierra-Plumas individual school sites' School Accountability Report Card for more detail. 
 

Teacher and Administrative Salaries (Fiscal Year 2017-18) 

Category 
District 
Amount 

State Average 
For Districts 

In Same Category 

Beginning Teacher Salary 38,647  

Mid-Range Teacher Salary 65,112  

Highest Teacher Salary 87,570  

Average Principal Salary (Elementary) 99,822  

Average Principal Salary (Middle) 99,822  

Average Principal Salary (High) 99,873  

Superintendent Salary 153,080  

Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries 29%  

Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries 2%  

For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE Certificated Salaries & Benefits web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/.  

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/


2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Sierra County Special Education Page 11 of 11 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) Courses (School Year 2018-19) 

Subject 
Number of 

AP Courses Offered* 
Percent of Students 

In AP Courses 

Computer Science  N/A 

English-------  N/A 

Fine and Performing Arts  N/A 

Foreign Language   N/A 

Mathematics  N/A 

Science-------  N/A 

Social Science  N/A 

All courses   

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
*Where there are student course enrollments of at least one student. 

 

Professional Development (Most Recent Three Years) 

Measure 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 30 30 30 

 
In conjunction with Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District, a Professional Learning Community (PLC) was implemented 
and meets regularly throughout the school year.  The primary focus is the utilization of technology in order to increase 
student achievement. 



  Prepared & Presented by: Nona Griesert, Business Manager 

 

Sierra County Office of Education 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Second Interim Budget 
2019/20 

 
 
 
 
 
 

March 10, 2020 
James Berardi/Superintendent 

 



    

SCOE 2019-2020 2nd Interim Budget Narrative 
Page 2 of 5 

Sierra County Office of Education 
2019-2020 Second Interim  

Actuals as of January 31, 2020 

Presented March 10, 2020 

 

 

The Second Interim budget report is a snapshot in time of the revenue and expenditure 

forecasts for the current fiscal year as well as a projection of the two subsequent fiscal 

years. It is a time to adjust the budget based upon the enacted State Budget and subsequent 

trailer bills, the closing of the prior fiscal year, and other factors that impact revenue and 

expenditures. The Second Interim report covers the period of time from July 1 through 

January 31 each fiscal year. Keep in mind that a budget and multi-year projection are just 

that - projections, not forecasts.  Projections are expected to change as various factors 

change, they are not predictions.  Projections are the mathematical result of today’s 

decisions based on a given set of assumptions.  Forecasts, on the other hand, are predictions 

of the future; there is a higher implied reliability factor than for projections.  Projections 

will change anytime the underlying factors change. 

 

 

The Big Picture 

 

The release of the Governor’s budget in January begins the six-month process of enacting a new state spending plan. The 

Governor’s 2020-21 budget proposal will require LEAs to adjust the 2020-21 cost of living adjustment (COLA) to 2.29% and 

the 2021-22 COLA to 2.71%.  

 

Major K-12 highlights from the Governor’s 2020-21 education proposals include: LCFF 

COLA of 2.29%, Recruitment and Professional Development, Expanded Supports and 

Services for the State’s Neediest Schools, Community School Grants, Special 

Education and Early Childhood Education. 

 

In the 2020-21 budget proposal as with the current year budget, most of the 

surplus is devoted to one-time spending. This approach enables the state to make 

significant investments in critical areas while also maintaining reserves.  

 

Maintaining fiscal solvency while maximizing services to students with available financial resources will be a continuing 

challenge. It is inevitable that cost reductions will be required for many districts in the budget year and/or the out years of the 

Multi-Year financial projection period. The projected COLA is 2.29% for 2020-21, significantly lower than expected.  

 

 

 
  



    

SCOE 2019-2020 2nd Interim Budget Narrative 
Page 3 of 5 

GENERAL FUND 
 

REVENUE 

Below are the changes in revenue projections since the budget adoption. 

 

Local Control Funding Formula 

LCFF State Revenue increased by $96 since budget adoption. 

 

Federal Revenue 

Federal Revenue has been increased by $9,980 for the following reason: 

       Favorable         

Funding Description            (Unfavorable) 

 SpEd IDEA Mental Health  ($      20) 

 McKinney Vento Homeless   $10,000 

Net Change         $9,980 

 
Other State Revenue 

Restricted Other State Revenue increased by $284,257 since the budget adoption for the following reasons: 

       Favorable         

Funding Description            (Unfavorable) 

 Mandated Block Grant decrease  ($  2,715) 

 State Lottery - Unrestricted   $     767 

 State Lottery - Restricted   $     322 

 Special Education    $  6,057 

 TUPE (RS6680)    $ 47,129 

 TUPE (RS6685)    $ 75,000 

 Classified Schl Emp Prof’l Dev  ($      586) 

 Foster Youth     $ 90,283 

 STRS on BEHALF    $ 68,000 

Net Change          $284,257 

Local Revenue 

Local Revenue did not have a change since the budget adoption.  

 

 

 

 

LCFF Sources; 
$874,217; 38%

Federal ; $162,256; 
7%

Other State; 
$861,327; 38%

Other Local; 
$321,293; 14%

Fund 16 - Transfer In; $60,120; 
3%

Total Resources $2,279,213



    

SCOE 2019-2020 2nd Interim Budget Narrative 
Page 4 of 5 

 

Description 2016-17 

Actuals  

2017-18  

Actuals  

2018-2019  

Actuals  

2019-2020 

Adopted 

Budget 

2019-2020 

Second 

Interim 

LCFF 

Resources $   775,048 $   854,206 $   851,039 $874,121 $874,217 

Federal         274,540            194,130           158,912 152,276 162,256 

Other State 688,441 660,753 634,134 577,070 861,327 

Other Local 340,611 370,430 486,100 321,293 321,293 

Total $2,078,640 $2,079,519 $2,130,185 $1,924,760 $2,219,093 

 

 

 

EXPENDITURES 

 

General Fund Expenditures 
Below are the changes in expenditure projections since the budget adoption. 

 

 

 
 

 
Expenditures Comparison  

Description 

2016-17 

Actuals 

2017-18 

Actuals 

2018-2019  

Actuals 

2019-2020 

Adopted 

Budget 

2019-2020 

Second 

Interim 

Certificated $  504,973 $  560,268 $  675,798 $  602,590 $  555,095 

Classified 374,437 398,276 401,509 476,594 468,497 

Benefits 418,617 494,494 553,278 484,818 559,293 

Books & Supplies 46,569 25,289 35,460 68,321 92,311 

Services & Operating 503,111 506,018 519,917 624,949 651,890 

Capital Outlay 81,843 10,916 291,968 35,000 138,614 

Other Outgo 129,294 34,249 47,204 29,929 49,428 

Total $2,058,844 $2,029,510 $2,525,134 2,322,201 2,515,128 

 

 

Certificated; 
$555,095; 22%

Classified; 
$468,497; 19%

Benefits; $559,293; 
22%

Books & Supplies; 
$92,311; 4%

Services & 
Operating; 

$651,890; 26%

Capital Outlay; 
$138,614; 5%

Outgo to District; 
$49,428; 2%

Total Expenses  $2,515,128



    

SCOE 2019-2020 2nd Interim Budget Narrative 
Page 5 of 5 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Projected Ending Fund Balance 

2015-16 $2,694,339 actuals 

2016-17 $2,698,358 actuals 

2017-18 $2,846,059 actuals 

2018-19 $2,509,684 actuals 

2019-20 $2,273,770 projected 

 

Personnel  FTE 

Certificated  6.22 

Superintendent    .15 

Administrative  3.00  22.32 FTE 

Classified  9.95 

Confidential  3.00 

 

Direct Services Contracted to provide special education services  

Speech 

Occupational Therapy 

Adapted P.E. 

Public Nurse 

 

Comments 

 

1. Statutory COLA of 3.26% for 2019/20. 

2. Certificated health and welfare (H/W) soft cap selected plan employee range (14,398.50 to 

19,534.50);   Certificated employees hired effective 2017/18 hard capped at $17,536; all other 

employees H/W is capped at $17,536. H/W cost is $193,671. 

3. PERS rate increase from 18.062% to 19.721% for a projected annual cost of $85,561. 

4. STRS rate increase from 16.28% to 17.10% for a projected annual cost of $186,746. 

5. Salaries and Benefits are approximately 72% of Revenue. 

6. Reimburse Sierra-Plumas Joint USD to provide foster youth, business, curriculum, and technology 

services. 

7. Forest Reserve Revenue budget is $60,120. 

8. Positive Certification 

9. Projected ending cash balance: $2,273,770 

 

 

Fiscal Year Amount 

2015-16 actuals 388,497 

2016-17 actuals 36,578 

2017-18 actuals 115,142 

2018-19 actuals (336,375) 

2019-20 projected (235,915) 



Reviewed By:

Year: 18/19 19/20 Pos (Neg) % 18/19 19/20 Pos (Neg) % 18/19 19/20 Pos (Neg) %

Period:

Adopted 

Budget

Second 

Interim Difference Change

Adopted 

Budget

Second 

Interim Difference Change

Adopted 

Budget

Second 

Interim Difference Change

Revenues

LCFF Revenues 8010-8099 874,121       874,217       96               0.01% -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 874,121       874,217       96               0.01%

Federal Revenues 8100-8299 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 152,276       162,256       9,980          6.55% 152,276       162,256       9,980          6.55%

State Revenues 8300-8599 5,859           3,911           (1,948)         -33.25% 571,211       857,416       286,205       50.10% 5 577,070       861,327       284,257       49.26%

Local Revenues 8600-8799 316,793       316,793       -                  0.00% 4,500           4,500           -                  0.00% 321,293       321,293       -                  0.00%

Total Revenues 1,196,773     1,194,921     (1,852)          -0.15% 727,987       1,024,172     296,185       40.69% 1,924,760     2,219,093     294,333       15.29%

Expenditures

Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 292,154       229,434       (62,720)       -21.47% 1 310,436       325,661       15,225         4.90% 602,590       555,095       (47,495)       -7.88%

Classified Salaries 2000-2999 295,735       246,780       (48,955)       -16.55% 2 180,859       221,717       40,858         22.59% 6 476,594       468,497       (8,097)         -1.70%

Benefits & Taxes 3000-3999 281,108       243,320       (37,788)       -13.44% 3 203,710       315,973       112,263       55.11% 7 484,818       559,293       74,475         15.36%

Materials & Supplies 4000-4999 20,178         33,007         12,829         63.58% 4 48,143         59,304         11,161          23.18% 8 68,321         92,311         23,990         35.11%

Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 381,204       368,176       (13,028)        -3.42% 243,745       283,714       39,969         16.40% 9 624,949       651,890       26,941         4.31%

Capital Outlay 6000-6599 35,000         35,000         -                  0.00% -                  103,614       103,614       #DIV/0! 10 35,000         138,614       103,614       296.04%

Other Outgo 7xxx's 24,428         24,428         -                  0.00% 5,501           25,000         19,499         354.46% 11 29,929         49,428         19,499         65.15%

Other Outgo 7300-7399 (2,736)          (4,264)          (1,528)         55.85% 2,736           4,264           1,528           55.85% -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Total Expenditures 1,327,071     1,175,881     (151,190)      -11.39% 995,130       1,339,247     344,117       34.58% 2,322,201     2,515,128     192,927       8.31%

Rev less Exp (130,298)      19,040         149,338       -114.61% (267,143)      (315,075)      (47,932)        17.94% (397,441)      (296,035)      101,406       -25.51%

Other Sources/Uses

Transfers In 8910-8979 53,056         60,120         7,064          13.31% 12 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 53,056         60,120         7,064          13.31%

Contributions 8980-8999 (267,143)      (293,975)      (26,832)       10.04% 267,143       293,975       26,832         10.04% -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Transfers Out 7610-7699 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Total Other Sources (214,087)      (233,855)      (19,768)        9.23% 267,143       293,975       26,832         10.04% 53,056         60,120         7,064           13.31%

Change in Fund Bal (344,385)     (214,815)      129,570       -37.62% -                 (21,100)        (21,100)        #DIV/0! (344,385)     (235,915)      108,470       -31.50%

Beg Fund Bal 2,231,194     2,488,585     257,391       11.54% -                  21,100         21,100         #DIV/0! 2,231,194     2,509,685     278,491       12.48%

Adjustments -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  #DIV/0!

Adj Beg Fund Bal 2,231,194     2,488,585     257,391       11.54% -                  21,100         21,100         #DIV/0! 2,231,194     2,509,685     278,491       12.48%

End Fund Bal 1,886,809     2,273,770     386,961       20.51% -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 1,886,809     2,273,770    386,961       20.51%

Non Spendable 500              500              -                  -                  500              500              -                  

Restricted  -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Comitted -                  #DIV/0! -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

OPEB 93,849         93,849         -                  -                  93,849         93,849         -                  

Assigned -                  #DIV/0! -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Deferred Maintenance 50,000         50,000         -                  -                  50,000         50,000         -                  

REU 232,000       252,000       20,000         -                  232,000       252,000       20,000         

Unassigned 1,510,460     1,877,421     366,961       24.29% -                 -                 -                 #DIV/0! 1,510,460     1,877,421     366,961       24.29%

REU is: 10.0% 10.0%

Tickmark Legend

Unrestricted Restricted Total

2019/20 Second Interim Budget

Sierra County Office of Education

Gen Fund Budget Comparison Worksheet



1 Certificated salary and benefits expenditures reduced approximately <$87k> due to curriculum position not being filled.

2 Unrestricted Classified Salaries for Academic Advisor position not being filled reduced approx <$46k>, additional expenditure reductions for classified settlement adjustments approx <$3k>.

3 Unrestricted Health & Welfare and Statutory Benefits expenditures reduced approx <$38> due to above salary changes.

4 Unrestricted Materials & Supplies increased approx $13k prior year unrestricted lottery carryover and EPA estimates.

5 Restricted revenue increased in SpEd approx $6k, TUPE carryover & awards approx. $122k, award for Foster Youth Program increase approx $91k, increase budget for STRS/PERS on Behalf $68k.

6 Restricted Classified Salaries increased for McKinney Vento approx $2k, SpEd increased approx $16k, Foster Youth increased approx $23k

7 Restricted benefits for SpEd increased approx $22k, McKinney Vento increased approx $500, Foster Youth increased approx $22k, STRS/PERS on behalf increase approx $68k.

8 Restricted Materials & Supplies for SpEd reduced approx <$3,500>, McKinney Vento increased approx $1k, Restricted Lottery increased approx $1,600, new TUPE RS6685 increased approx $12k,

9 Restricted Operating Expenditures for McKinney Vento increased approx $6k, SpEd reduced approx <$23k>, TUPE increased approx $33k, Foster Youth increased approx $24k.

10 Restricted Capital Outlay increased for Prop 39 carryover from prior year.

11 Restricted Special Education Tuition increased approx $20k

12 Unrestricted Transfers-In increased approx $7k for Forest Reserve Funding.

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Sierra County Office of Education

2019/20 Second Interim Budget



Sierra County Office of Education

2019/20 Second Interim Budget

Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined

A B C D E F G H I

Revenues

LCFF Revenues 8010-8099 874,217        -               874,217         894,217       -            894,217       918,450       -              918,450        

Federal Revenues 8100-8299 -               162,256        162,256         -              152,256     152,256       -              152,256       152,256        

State Revenues 8300-8599 3,911           857,416        861,327         3,911           682,504     686,415       3,911           682,504       686,415        

Local Revenues 8600-8799 316,793        4,500           321,293         316,793       4,500         321,293       316,793       4,500           321,293        

Transfers In 8910-8979 60,120          -               60,120           60,120         -            60,120         60,120         -              60,120          

Contributions 8980-8999 (293,975)       293,975        -                (363,041)      363,041     -              (373,082)      373,082       -               

Total Revenues 961,066       1,318,147     2,279,213      912,000       1,202,301   2,114,301     926,192       1,212,342    2,138,534     

Expenditures

Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 229,434        325,661        555,095         233,585       313,529     547,114       237,736       318,770       556,506        

Classified Salaries 2000-2999 246,780        221,717        468,497         252,636       201,116     453,752       261,128       204,136       465,264        

Benefits & Taxes 3000-3999 243,320        315,973        559,293         250,236       298,766     549,002       254,298       300,546       554,844        

Materials & Supplies 4000-4999 33,007          59,304         92,311           33,007         55,135       88,142         33,007         55,135         88,142          

Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 368,176        283,714        651,890         368,176       252,802     620,978       368,176       252,802       620,978        

Capital Outlay 6000-6599 35,000          103,614        138,614         35,000         77,098       112,098       35,000         77,098         112,098        

Other Outgo 7xxx's 24,428          25,000         49,428           24,428         -            24,428         24,428         -              24,428          

Other Outgo 7300-7399 (4,264)          4,264           -                (4,264)          3,855         (409)            (4,264)          3,855           (409)             

Transfers Out 7600-7629 -               -               -                -              -            -              -              -              -               

Total Expenditures 1,175,881     1,339,247    2,515,128       1,192,804    1,202,301   2,395,105    1,209,509    1,212,342    2,421,851     

Rev less Exp (214,815)       (21,100)        (235,915)        (280,804)      -            (280,804)      (283,317)      -              (283,317)       

Change in Fund Bal (214,815)      (21,100)        (235,915)        (280,804)     -            (280,804)     (283,317)      -              (283,317)      

Beg Fund Bal 2,488,585     21,100         2,509,685       2,273,770    -            2,273,770     1,992,966     -              1,992,966     

Adjustments -               -               -                -            -              -              -               

Adj Beg Fund Bal 2,488,585     21,100         2,509,685       2,273,770    -            2,273,770     1,992,966     -              1,992,966     

End Fund Bal 2,273,770    -              2,273,770      1,992,966    -            1,992,966    1,709,649    -              1,709,649     

Non Spendable 500              -               500                500             -            500              500              -              500              

Restricted  -               -               -                -            -              -              -               

Comitted

OPEB 93,849          -               93,849           92,485         -            92,485         92,485         -              92,485          

Assigned

Deferred Maintenance 50,000          -               50,000           100,000       100,000       150,000       150,000        

REU 252,000        -               252,000         252,000       -            252,000       252,000       -              252,000        

Unassigned 1,877,421     -              1,877,421       1,740,466    -            1,740,466    1,457,149    -              1,457,149     

Budget MYP MYP

Multi Year Projection

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22































































































































































































 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

2020 – 2021 Proposed School Calendar DOWNIEVILLE 
 

Month 
 

Sun 
 

Mon 
 

Tue 
 

Wed 
 

Thu 
 

Fri 
 

Sat 
 

Special Days 
Teacher 

Days 
School 
Days 

AUG 
16 17 18 19 20 21 22  

6 

17 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 24-25 Staff Development Days 26 First Day of School 
30 31       

SEP 

  1 2 3 4 5  

21 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 7 Labor Day Holiday 
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 18 End of 1st Month 
20 21 22 23 24 25 26  

20 

27 28 29 30     

OCT 

    1 2 3  

22 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10  
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 16 End of 2nd Month 
18 19 20 21 22 23 24  

19 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 28-30 Min. Days 

NOV 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7  

17 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 11 Veteran’s Day Holiday 13 End of 3rd Month 
15 16 17 18 19 20 21  

17 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 25-27 Thanksgiving Break 
29 30       

DEC 

  1 2 3 4 5  

14 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 11 End of 4th Month 
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 18 Min. Day 

19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 21-1 Winter Break 
27 28 29 30 31 1 2  

JAN 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9  

19 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16  
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 18 Martin Luther King Holiday 22 End of 5th Month 
24 25 26 27 28 29 30  

18 
FEB 

31 1 2 3 4 5 6  

18 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 8 Lincoln’s Birthday Holiday 
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 15 President’s Day Holiday 19 End of 6th Month 
21 22 23 24 25 26 27  

19 MAR 

28 1 2 3 4 5 6  

21 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13  
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 15 Snow Day #1 19 End of 7th Month 
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 22 Snow Day #3 

13 

28 29 30 31     

APR 

    1 2 3 2 Snow Day #2 

16 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 5-9 Spring Break 
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 16 End of 8th Month 
18 19 20 21 22 23 24  

20 

24 26 27 28 29 30 1  

MAY 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8  

19 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 14 End of 9th Month 
16 17 18 19 20 21 22  

18 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 28 Snow Day #4 
30 31      31 Memorial Day Holiday 

JUN 
  1 2 3 4 5  

9 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 11 Last Day of School (Min. Day) 
13 14 15 16 17 18 19  

182 180  Total Required Days 
* Wednesdays = Early Release (LES/DOWNIEVILLE @ 1:30 pm, LHS @ 1:35 pm) 



 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2020 – 2021 Proposed School Calendar LOYALTON 

 
Month 

 
Sun 

 
Mon 

 
Tue 

 
Wed 

 
Thu 

 
Fri 

 
Sat 

 
Special Days 

Teacher 
Days 

School 
Days 

AUG 
16 17 18 19 20 21 22  

6 

17 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 24-25 Staff Development Days 26 First Day of School 
30 31       

SEP 

  1 2 3 4 5  

21 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 7 Labor Day Holiday 
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 18 End of 1st Month 
20 21 22 23 24 25 26  

20 

27 28 29 30     

OCT 

    1 2 3  

22 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10  
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 16 End of 2nd Month 
18 19 20 21 22 23 24  

19 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31  

NOV 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7  

17 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 11 Veteran’s Day Holiday 13 End of 3rd Month 
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 18-20 Min. Days – End of 1st Trimester 

17 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 25-27 Thanksgiving Break 
29 30       

DEC 

  1 2 3 4 5  

14 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 11 End of 4th Month 
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 18 Min. Day 

19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 21-1 Winter Break 
27 28 29 30 31 1 2  

JAN 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9  

19 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16  
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 18 Martin Luther King Holiday 22 End of 5th Month 
24 25 26 27 28 29 30  

18 
FEB 

31 1 2 3 4 5 6  

18 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 8 Lincoln’s Birthday Holiday 
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 15 President’s Day Holiday 19 End of 6th Month 
21 22 23 24 25 26 27  

19 MAR 

28 1 2 3 4 5 6  

21 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13  
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 15 Snow Day #1 19 End of 7th Month 
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 22 Snow Day #3 

13 

28 29 30 31     

APR 

    1 2 3 2 Snow Day #2 

16 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 5-9 Spring Break 
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 16 End of 8th Month 
18 19 20 21 22 23 24  

20 

24 26 27 28 29 30 1  

MAY 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8  

19 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 14 End of 9th Month 
16 17 18 19 20 21 22  

18 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 28 Snow Day #4 
30 31      31 Memorial Day Holiday 

JUN 
  1 2 3 4 5  

9 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 11 Last Day of School (Min. Day) 
13 14 15 16 17 18 19  

182 180  Total Required Days 
* Wednesdays = Early Release (LES/DOWNIEVILLE @ 1:30 pm, LHS @ 1:35 pm) 



  

 

Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Safe Schools Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Version: 11.0 
 
James Berardi 
Superintendent of Schools 
 
Board of Education Review and Approval: March 10, 2020 
 
  



Sierra County Safe Schools Plan | Version 11.0 
 
 

 1  

Table of  Contents 
GENERAL	INFORMATION	.........................................................................................................................	4 

Assessment	of	Crime	........................................................................................................................................	4 

School	Crisis	and	Safety	Plan	Summary	.....................................................................................................	6 

Action	Plan	Summary	.......................................................................................................................................	7 

Special	Information	for	Parents	...................................................................................................................	8 

Section	I	‐	Introduction	.........................................................................................................................	11 

1. Introduction	.............................................................................................................................................	12 

2. Planning	.....................................................................................................................................................	13 

3. Communications	.....................................................................................................................................	15 

4. Responsibilities	.......................................................................................................................................	17 

5. General	Crisis	Management	Plan	......................................................................................................	19 

6. Team	Responsibilities	..........................................................................................................................	20 

Section	II	–	Emergency	Actions	..........................................................................................................	21 

1. Leave	Building	.........................................................................................................................................	22 

2. Stand‐By	Lockdown	...............................................................................................................................	23 

3. Secure	Building/Shelter	in	Place	......................................................................................................	24 

4. Evacuation/Directed	Transportation	.............................................................................................	25 

5. Duck,	Cover,	and	Hold	On	....................................................................................................................	26 

6. Return	to	Building	..................................................................................................................................	26 

7. All	Clear	......................................................................................................................................................	27 

8. Convert	School	.........................................................................................................................................	28 

Section	III	–	Emergency	Procedures	.................................................................................................	29 

1. Preface	........................................................................................................................................................	30 

2. Fire	...............................................................................................................................................................	31 

3. Flood	............................................................................................................................................................	32 

4. Earthquake	................................................................................................................................................	33 

5. Loss	of	Utilities	and/or	Sewer	Problems	........................................................................................	34 

6. Severe	Weather	.......................................................................................................................................	35 

7. Weapons	Fired	.........................................................................................................................................	37 

8. Hazardous	Materials	.............................................................................................................................	38 

9. Irrational	Behavior	................................................................................................................................	39 

10. Personal	Emergencies	.......................................................................................................................	40 

11. Rabid	Animal/Animal	Disturbance	..............................................................................................	41 



Sierra County Safe Schools Plan | Version 11.0 
 
 

 2  

12. Bomb	Threat	.........................................................................................................................................	42 

13. Civil	Disobedience/Student	Disorder	.........................................................................................	45 

14. Stranger	or	Intruder	on	Campus	...................................................................................................	46 

15. Explosion/Threat	of	Explosion	......................................................................................................	48 

16. Threat	Condition	Red	(Terrorist	Attack)	...................................................................................	49 

17. Health/Medical	Emergency.............................................................................................................	50 

18. Special	Education	Adaptations	......................................................................................................	51 

Section	IV	–	Emergency	Preparedness	Week	.................................................................................	53 

1. Agenda	for	Emergency	Preparedness	(EP)	Week	.......................................................................	54 

2. EP	Week	.....................................................................................................................................................	55 

3. EP	Week	Team	Discussion	Checklist	...............................................................................................	56 

4. General	Emergency	Instructions	......................................................................................................	57 
Monday .................................................................................................................................................................................................. 59 
Tuesday & Wednesday .............................................................................................................................................................. 60 
Thursday & Friday......................................................................................................................................................................... 61 

Section	V	–	Other	Procedures	and	Information	............................................................................	62 

1. Child	Abuse	Reporting	Procedures	..................................................................................................	63 

2. Hate	Motivated	Behavior	Reporting	................................................................................................	66 

3. Bus	Driver	Disaster	Procedures	........................................................................................................	67 

4. Emergency	Numbers	.............................................................................................................................	68 

5. Evacuation	Routes	..................................................................................................................................	69 

6. Contents	of	Emergency	Binder	..........................................................................................................	70 

7. Signals	&	Actions	.....................................................................................................................................	71 

8. Emergency	Action	Summary	...............................................................................................................	72 

Section	VI	–	Miscellaneous	...................................................................................................................	74 

Form	A:	Annual	Emergency	Plan	Checklist	...........................................................................................	75 

Form	B:	Bomb	Threat	Report	.....................................................................................................................	76 

Form	C:	Classroom	Hazard	Checklist	.......................................................................................................	77 

Form	D:	Emergency	Drills	Form	................................................................................................................	78 

Form	E:	Emergency	Status	Report	............................................................................................................	79 

Form	F:	Evacuation	Route	Hazard	Checklist	.........................................................................................	82 

Form	G:	Injury	and	Missing	Persons	Report	.........................................................................................	83 

Form	H:	Hate	Motivated	Behavior	Reporting	.......................................................................................	84 

Form	I:	Special	Staff	Skills	and	Equipment	............................................................................................	85 

Form	J:	Student	Release	Log	.......................................................................................................................	86 



Sierra County Safe Schools Plan | Version 11.0 
 
 

 3  

Form	K:	Student	Release‐Permission	Slip	.............................................................................................	87 

Section	VII	–	Authorities	and	References	........................................................................................	88 

Emergencies	And	Disaster	Preparedness	Plan			BP	3516	...............	Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Emergencies	And	Disaster	Preparedness	Plan			AR	3516	...............	Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Fire	Drills	And	Fires				AR	3516.1	..............................................................................................................	98 

PROHIBITED	STUDENT	CONDUCT	AND	CONSEQUENCES	...............................................................	100 

California	Administrative	Code,	Title	V	................................................................................................	103 

Penal	Code	§	627	...........................................................................................................................................	107 

Section	VIII	–	Standard	Emergency	Management	System	......................................................	108 
 



Sierra County Safe Schools Plan | Version 11.0 
 
 

 4  

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
California Education Code §32281(d)(1)  
“Subdivision(b) shall not apply to a small school district, as defined in paragraph (2), if the 
small school district develops a districtwide comprehensive school safety plan that is 
applicable to each school site.” 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District is considered a small school district.   
 
Assessment of Crime 
 
Crime Reports 
 
In the school year of 2017-2018, three crime reports were made. 
In the school year of 2018-2019, nine crime reports were made. 
 
Results from Healthy Kids Survey 2015-2016– 12th Grade 
 
Q:  I feel safe in my school 

Strongly disagree  ........  ........ 0 
Disagree  ........  ........ 0 
Neither disagree nor agree .  ........ 14 
Agree  ........  ........ 57 
Strongly agree  ........  ........ 29 

 
Q:  School staff takes parent concerns seriously 

Strongly disagree  ........  ........ 3 
Disagree  ........  ........ 3 
Neither disagree nor agree .  ........ 24 
Agree  ........  ........ 66 
Strongly agree  ........  ........ 3 
 

Perceived Safety at School 
Very safe  ........  ........ 39% 
Safe  ........  ........ 50% 
Neither safe nor unsafe ......  ........ 11% 
Unsafe  ........  ........ 0 
Very unsafe  ........  ........ 0 

 
Violence and Victimization on School Property, Past 12 Months 

How many times on school property have you: 
 
-been pushed, shoved, slapped, hit or kicked by someone who wasn’t just 
kidding around? 

 
0 times .................. 79% 
1 time ...................  7% 
2 to 3 times ...........   7% 



Sierra County Safe Schools Plan | Version 11.0 
 
 

 5  

4 or more times ......  7% 
 
-been afraid of being beaten up? 
 

0 times .................. 97% 
1 time ...................  3% 
2 to 3 times ...........  0% 
4 or more times ......  0% 

 
-been offered, sold, or given an illegal drug? 
 

0 times .................. 97% 
1 time ...................  3% 
2 to 3 times ...........  0% 
4 or more times ......  0% 

 
Suspensions/Expulsions 
The district had an unduplicated total of 17 students suspended during the 2017-
2018 school year.  The district had an unduplicated total of 19 students suspended 
during the 2018-2019 school year.  No students were suspended for a total of 
fifteen days. 
 
In the 2017-18 school year, no students were expelled. 
In the 2018-19 school year, no students were expelled. 
 
Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Students  
 
Each school site in the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District has provided safe 
ingress and egress for students and staff, including drop off areas at the front of 
schools and specific arrival and departure procedures for bus students. At the 
beginning of each school year personnel discuss school rules and safety procedures 
with students.  
 
Under the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals who are deaf/hard of hearing, 
blind/partially sighted, mobility impaired and/or cognitively/emotionally impaired must be 
assisted. Trained staff assist individuals with disabilities. 
 
The Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District encourages walking, bicycling, or 
scootering to school. If children must be driven by car, carpooling is encouraged. 
Safety is emphasized, whatever the mode of transportation. It is everyone’s 
responsibility to know the traffic laws surrounding the school, including appropriate 
speed limits, and to obey them.  





































Page 1 of 1 

CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET – March 10, 2020 
 
 
BP 2121 - Superintendent's Contract 
(BP revised) 

Policy updated to add professional development as an optional component that may be addressed in the 
superintendent's contract, consistent with CSBA's Superintendent Contract Template. Section on 
"Termination of Contract" deletes material related to maximum cash settlement requirements for contracts 
executed prior to January 1, 2016, since state law limits the term of the contract to a maximum of four years. 

 
 
**Initially presented at September 2019 meeting – revisions rejected** 
BP 1112 - Media Relations 
(BP revised) 

Policy updated to expand the section on "Crisis Communications Plan" to apply to natural disasters, involve 
district technology personnel in the development of the plan, and expand the contents of the plan. Policy also 
updated to encourage the establishment of priorities and key messages for proactive communications with 
the media, clarify that media representatives can be required to register before coming on campus only if the 
district has adopted a policy requiring all visitors to register, and clarify that the only student directory 
information that may be released to the media is that information designated by the district in AR 5125.1 - 
Release of Directory Information.  

 
**Initially presented at September 2019 meeting – additions rejected** 
BP/AR 6142.2 - World Language Instruction 
(BP/AR revised added) 

Policy and regulation retitled to be consistent with terminology used in the Education Code pursuant to NEW 
LAW (AB 2319, 2018). Policy and regulation updated to reflect NEW STATE CONTENT STANDARDS 
for world language instruction adopted by the State Board of Education in January 2019. Policy also reflects 
University of California guidance stating that American Sign Language courses may be used to satisfy world 
language coursework requirements for college admission, and reflects state regulations which require 
districts to establish a process for receiving and responding to input from parents/guardians and other 
stakeholders regarding the world language in which instruction will be provided in any program sufficient to 
produce proficiency in a world language. Regulation also reflects state regulation requiring districts to 
establish a process for receiving and responding to parent/guardian requests to establish a language 
acquisition program not currently offered at the school. 

 
**Initially presented at September 2019 meeting – revisions rejected** 
BP/AR 6145.6 - International Exchange 
(BP/AR revised) 

Policy updated to clarify the scope of the policy, separate material pertaining to district students studying in 
another country and material pertaining to international exchange students studying in district schools, and 
reflect CSBA Legal Guidance. Policy also addresses student eligibility, information to obtain from the 
placement organization, and methods that may be used to calculate the total cost of educating an international 
student for the purpose of determining tuition. Regulation reflects the requirement to provide the placement 
organization with written acceptance of a student's enrollment, clarifies that a student's enrollment may be 
for one semester or one year, and adds optional language regarding the provision of a school transcript. 

 





1 
**Revisions** 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Administration  
BP 2121 
 
SUPERINTENDENT'S CONTRACT 
 
The Governing Board believes that the Superintendent's employment contract should outline the 
framework through which the Board and Superintendent are towill work together as a governance team 
to achieve district goals and objectives. When approving the Superintendent's employment contract, 
the Board shall consider the need forvalue of stability in district administration and shall ensure , the 
best use of district resources, and the Board's duty to ensure accountability to the public for the 
performance of the district's schools. 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 2120 - Superintendent Recruitment and Selection) 
(cf. 4312.1 - Contracts) 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 
 

Note: The following list of contract components is consistent with a template for superintendent contracts 
developed by CSBA. The annotated template contract with additional context and suggestions is available through 
CSBA's web site. 

 
The contract shall be reviewed by the district's legal counsel and may include the following: 
 
1. Term of the contract, which shall be for no more than four years pursuant to Education Code 

35031 
 
2. Length of the work year and hours of work 
 
3. Salary, health and welfare benefits, and other compensation for the position, including a 

statement that any subsequent increase in the Superintendent's salary shall be at the sole 
discretion of the Board 
(cf. 4154/4254/4354 - Health and Welfare Benefits) 

 
4. Reimbursement of work-related expenses, including mileage reimbursement, consistent with 

Board policies, regulations, and guidelines applicable to other professional administrative staff 
(cf. 3350 - Travel Expenses) 

 
The contract may also address payment for professional dues and activities, the district's 
provision of cell phones or other technological devices, and the Superintendent's use of his/her 
a  
personal vehicle. 
(cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology) 

 
5. Vacation, illness and injury leave, and personal leaves 

(cf. 4161/4261/4361 - Leaves) 
(cf. 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave) 
(cf. 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves) 
(cf. 4161.5/4261.5/4361.5 - Military Leave) 
(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave) 

 
66.  Professional development 



2 
 
7. General duties and responsibilities of the position  

(cf. 2110 - Superintendent Responsibilities and Duties) 
 
78. Criteria, process, and procedure for annual evaluation of the Superintendent 

(cf. 2140 - Evaluation of the Superintendent) 
8. A statement that any subsequent increase in the Superintendent's salary shall be at the sole 
discretion of the Board 
 
9. A statement that there shall be no automatic renewal or extension of the contract, although the 

Board can enter into a new contract with the Superintendent prior to the expiration of the 
existing contract 

 
Note: Pursuant to Education Code 35031, if the Governing Board decides not to reemploy the Superintendent, it 
must provide notification at least 45 days before the contract expires. If the Board fails to provide the required 
prior written notice, the Superintendent shall be deemed reemployed for a term of the same length as the one 
completed, under the same terms and conditions, and with the same compensation. 

 
10. Timeline for providing written notice to the Superintendent if the Board does not wish to enter 

into a new contract, which shall be at least 45 calendar days in advance of the expiration of the 
term of the contract pursuant to Education Code 35031, and the responsibility of the 
Superintendent to remind the Board in writing and in a timely manner of the requirement to 
give notice 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 

 
Note:  See section on "Termination of Contract" below for limitations to maximum cash settlements. 

 
11. Conditions and process for termination of the contract, including the maximum cash settlement 

that the Superintendent may receive if the contract is terminated prior to its expiration date 
 
12. Matters related to liability and indemnification against demands, claims, suits, actions, and 

legal proceedings brought against the Superintendent in his/herthe Superintendent's official 
capacity in the performance of duties related to his/her employment-related duties  

 
Note: Pursuant to Government Code 54957, personnel matters related to the appointment or employment of an 
employee may be discussed in closed session under the "personnel exception." However, Government Code 54957 
prohibits the use of closed session for discussion or action on any proposed change in compensation other than a 
reduction of compensation that results from the imposition of discipline. In San Diego Union v. City Council, a 
California Court of Appeal held that the "personnel exception" provided in Government Code 54957 does not 
extend to discussions of salary and compensation. 
 
Notwithstanding Government Code 54957, the Board is authorized pursuant to Government Code 54957.6, the 
"labor exception," to hold closed sessions with the district's designated representatives regarding the salaries, salary 
schedules, or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits to its represented and unrepresented employees, 
including the Superintendent. The Attorney General has opined in 57 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen. 209 (1974) that a board 
may only meet in closed session for such purposes with a designated representative who is involved with the "bona 
fide" negotiations with represented and/or unrepresented employees.  The Attorney General's publication The 
Brown Act: Open Meetings for Local Legislative Bodies also states that the "labor exception" applies to meeting 
in closed session to instruct its representatives concerning negotiations with prospective employees. Boards 
wishing to discuss the Superintendent's salary in closed session under the "labor exception" are encouraged to 
consult legal counsel before doing so. 
 
In addition, pursuant to Government Code 54956, the Board is prohibited from deliberating on the salary or other 
compensation of the Superintendent at a special meeting.  See BB 9320 - Meetings and Notices and BB 9321 - 
Closed Session. 
The following paragraph should be revised to reflect district practice. 

 



3 
The Board may deliberate about terms of the contract in closed session at a regular meeting.  However, 
discussions regarding the salary, salary schedule, or other compensation may occur in the closed 
session of a regular meeting only between the Board and its designated representative(s), as permitted 
under Government Code 54957.6 (the "labor exception"), for the purpose of reviewing the Board's 
position and/or instructing the designated representative(s) prior to or during bona fide negotiations 
with the current or prospective Superintendent. Such deliberations shall not be held during a special 
meeting.  (Government Code 54956, 54957, 54957.6) 
 
The Board may consult with district legal counsel prior to holding a closed session with the designated 
representative(s) to discuss compensation to be paid to the current or prospective Superintendent. 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) (cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports) 
 
Terms of the contract shall remain confidential until the ratification process commences. 
(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
 

Note: Pursuant to Government Code 54953, the Board must, in open session, orally report a summary of the 
recommendation for final action on the Superintendent's salary or benefits and must make related records available 
to the public in accordance with the California Public Records Act. Thus, Government Code 54953 limits the 
Board's ability to approve changes to salary or benefits as part of a consent calendar and instead requires such 
approval to be a separate agenda item. For identical requirements regarding final action on the salary or benefits 
of other district executives, see BP 4312.1 - Contracts. 

 
The Board shall take final action on the Superintendent's contract during an open session of a regularly 
scheduled Board meeting, and that action shall be reflected in the Board's minutes. At that meeting, 
prior to taking action, the Board shall orally report a summary of the recommendation for the final 
action on the Superintendent's salary or compensation in the form of fringe benefits.  (Government 
Code 3511.1, 53262, 54953) 
 
Copies of the contract and other public records created or received in the process of developing the 
recommendation related to the Superintendent's salary, benefits, and other compensation shall be 
available to the public upon request.  (Government Code 53262, 54953, 54957.6) 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
Termination of Contract 
 

Note: Pursuant to Government Code 53260, every employee contract must include a provision limiting the 
maximum cash settlement the employee may receive upon termination of the contract to an amount equal to the 
monthly salary multiplied by the number of months left on the contract. For a Superintendent contract, Government 
Code 53260 provides that the maximum cash settlement is the monthly salary multiplied by 12. Cash settlements 
may be less than these maximums. The district must make contracts of employment, which include the termination 
agreements, available to the public upon request. See AR 4117.5/4217.5/4317.5 - Termination Agreements. 

 
Prior to the expiration of the contract, the Board may terminate the Superintendent's employment 
contract in accordance with law and applicable contract provisions. 
(cf. 4117.5/4217.5/4317.5 - Termination Agreements) 
 
In such an event, anythe maximum cash settlement that the Superintendent may receive upon 
termination of the contract shall not exceed his/her monthly salary multiplied by the number of months 
left on the contract or, if the unexpired term of the contract is more than 18 months and the contract 
was executed prior to January 1, 2016, no greater than the Superintendent's monthly salary multiplied 
by 18. For any contract executed on or after January 1, 2016, any cash settlement shall not exceedthe 
number of months left on the contract or the Superintendent's monthly salary multiplied by 12, 
whichever is less.  (Government Code 53260) 
 



4 
The cash settlement shall not include any noncash items other than health benefits, which may be 
continued for the same duration of time as covered in the settlement or until the Superintendent finds 
other employment, whichever occurs first.  (Government Code 53260, 53261) 
 
However, when the termination of the Superintendent's contract is based upon the Board's belief and 
subsequent confirmation through an independent audit that the Superintendent has engaged in fraud, 
misappropriation of funds, or other illegal fiscal practices, no cash or noncash settlement of any amount 
shall be provided.  (Government Code 53260) 
 
In addition, if the Superintendent is convicted of a crime involving an abuse of his/her office or 
position, he/shethe Superintendent shall reimburse the district for payments he/she receivesreceived as 
paid leave salary pending investigation or as cash settlement upon his/her termination, and for any 
funds expended by the district in his/her defensedefending the Superintendent against a crime 
involving his/herthe Superintendent's office or position.  (Government Code 53243-53243.4, 53260) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
35031  Term of employment 
41325-41329.3 41328 Conditions of emergency apportionment 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
3511.1-3511.2  Local agency executives 
6250-6270  California Public Records Act 
53243-53243.4  Abuse of office 
53260-53264  Employment contracts 
54953  Oral summary of recommended salary and benefits of superintendent 
54954  Time and place of regular meetings 
54956  Special meetings 
54957  Closed session personnel matters 
54957.1  Closed session, public report of action taken 
54957.6  Closed sessions regarding employee matters 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 26 
105  Self-insured medical reimbursement plan; definition of highly compensated individual 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
300gg-16  Group health plan; nondiscrimination in favor of highly compensated individuals 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 26 
1.105-11  Self-insured medical reimbursement plan 
COURT DECISIONS 
San Diego Union v. City Council, (1983) 146 Cal.App.3d 947 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
57 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen. 209 (1974) 

Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Superintendent Contract Template, 2015 
ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 
The Brown Act:  Open Meetings for Local Legislative Bodies, 2003 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
Association of California School Administrators:  http://www.acsa.org 
California Office of the Attorney General:  https://oag.ca.gov 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: February 14, 2012  
revised: January 12, 2016 
revised: July 12, 2016 
revised: June 13, 2017 
revised: March 10, 2020 



1 
**Revisions** 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Community Relations  
BP 1112 
 
MEDIA RELATIONS 
 

Note:  The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice. 
As part of building positive media relations, the district may consider presenting awards to media representatives 
who have helped support district goals and programs. See BP 1150 - Commendations and Awards. The district 
may also nominate journalists for CSBA's Golden Quill Award, which recognizes fair, insightful, and accurate 
reporting of the objectives, operations, accomplishments, challenges, and opportunities related to public schools. 

 
The Governing Board of Education respects the public's desire for and right to information and 
recognizes that the media significantly influence the community's understanding of school 
programs., student achievement, and school safety.  In order to develop and maintain positive 
media relations, the Board and the Superintendent desire toshall reasonably accommodate media 
requests for information and to provide accurate, reliable, and timely information. 
 
In conjunction with the Superintendent or designee, the Board shall periodically establish priorities 
and key messages for proactively communicating with the media regarding current district issues, 
activities, or needs. 
(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 0510 - School Accountability Report Card) 
(cf. 1100 - Communication with the Public) 
(cf. 1160 - Political Processes) 
 
Media representatives are welcome at all public Board meetings and shall receive meeting agendas 
upon request in accordance with Board policy. 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session); (cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 
 

Note:  Penal Code 627.2 requires all "outsiders" to register upon entering school grounds during school hours. 
Pursuant to Penal Code 627.1, media representatives are not defined as "outsiders."  However, the Attorney 
General has opined (79 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 58 (1996)) that, pursuant to Education Code 32212, districts are 
authorized to prevent interference with the orderly educational activities of the school, which may include 
restricting media representatives in the same manner that access by the general public may be limited (e.g., 
registration or accompaniment by a staff member when on school grounds).  According to the Attorney General 
opinion, a district that has developed a policy requiring all members of the general public, both visitors and 
outsiders, to register upon entering school grounds may similarly require media representatives to register before 
coming on campus. Although Attorney General opinions are not binding on the courts, they are generally afforded 
deference when there is no specific statutory or case law to the contrary. See BP/AR 1250 - Visitors/Outsiders for 
options regarding registration. 
The following optional paragraph is only for use by districts that require all visitors to register upon entering school 
grounds, and does not apply to districts that only require outsiders to register. Districts should ensure consistency 
with this paragraph and BP 1250 - Visitors/Outsiders. 

 
Media representatives, like all other visitors, shall register immediately upon entering any school 
building or grounds when school is in session. 
(cf. 1250 - Visitors/Outsiders) 
(cf. 3515.2 - Disruptions) 



2 
 
 
Staff may provide the media with student directory information, including, but not limited to, the 
name of a student, school of attendance, grade level, honors, and activitiesas identified in AR 
5125.1 - Release of Directory Information, unless the student's parent/guardian has submitted a 
written request that such information not be disclosed.  The district shall not release other student 
records or personally identifiable student information that is private or confidential as required by 
law, Board policy, or administrative regulation. No other access to student records or personally 
identifiable student information may be provided without written parent/guardian permission. 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 
(cf. 9010 - Public Statements) 
(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports9324 - Minutes and Recordings) 
 
Interviewing and Photographing Students 
 

Note:  In 79 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 58 (1996), the Attorney General stated that, because students have a constitutional 
right to free speech, school administrators may not require prior written parental permission before allowing media 
representatives to interview particular students on campus.  However, Education Code 48907 and 48950 and case 
law clarify that the district may adopt reasonable provisions for the time, place, and manner in which free 
expression may occur within the district's jurisdiction. Therefore, in some circumstances (e.g., interviews during 
class time or interviews that identify other students by name), it may be appropriate to limit the student's ability to 
talk with the media on campus. Because this is a complex area of law, districts should consult with legal counsel 
before adopting a policy or practice that may limit students' constitutional rights. 
 
Neither the Attorney General opinion nor case law considers the rights of media to photograph students on school 
grounds.  However, the same concerns raised with regard to student interviews, such as a substantial disruption to 
the orderly operation of school or a substantial invasion of the rights of others, including privacy rights, may exist 
with regard to photos. Furthermore, in some cases, the publishing of a photo may affect student safety, such as 
when a student's attendance is concealed from a parent due to a domestic violence restraining order.  Districts 
should consult with legal counsel before adopting a policy or practice that may limit the photographing of students 
by the media. 
 
The following optional paragraph should be revised to reflect district practice. 

 
The district shall not impose restraints on students' right to speak freely with media representatives 
at those times which do not disrupt a student's educational program.  However, interviews of 
students may not create substantial disorder or impinge on the rights of others.  Therefore, in order 
to minimize possible disruption, media representatives who wish to interview students at school 
are required to make prior arrangements with the principal. At their discretion, parents/guardians 
may instruct their children not to communicate with media representatives..  However, 
interviewing and photographing students shall not create substantial disruption to the orderly 
operation of the school or impinge on the rights or safety of students.  Therefore, the district shall 
encourage media representatives who wish to interview or photograph students at school to make 
prior arrangements with the principal. 
(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression) 
 
In order to protect the privacy and safety of students, a media representative who wishes to 
photograph students on school grounds should first make arrangements with the principal or 
designee. 
 
When interviewing or photographing a special education student, he/she shall not be identified as 
a special education student without prior, written parent/guardian permission. 



3 
 
 
Media Communications Plan 
 
In order to help develop strong relations with the media, the Superintendent or designee shall 
develop a proactive media communications plan.  This plan may include, but not be limited to, 
information related to district programs and needs, student awards, school accomplishments and 
events of special interest. 
 
Media Contacts/Spokespersons 
 

Note:  The following section should be revised to reflect district practice. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall identifyThe plan shall specify the district's and/or site's 
primary media contact to whom all media inquiries shall be routed.  Spokespersons designated to 
speak to the media on behalf of the district include the Board president, Superintendent and, public 
information officer., or district communications director.  Other Board members and/or staff may 
be asked by the Superintendent or designee to speak to the media on a case-by-case basis, 
depending on their expertise on an issue or appropriateness given a particular situation. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide training on effective media relations to all designated 
spokespersons. 
(cf. 9240 - Board DevelopmentTraining) 
 
Crisis Communications Plan 
 

Note:  The following optional section may be revised to reflect district practice.  CSBA recommends that districts 
develop a crisis communications plan to help ensure that accurate and timely information is provided to students, 
parents/guardians, the community, and the media during a crisis or natural disaster. This crisis plan may be a 
separate document or may be incorporated into other safety plans such as the district's comprehensive safety plan 
(see AR 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) and/or emergency and disaster preparedness plan (see AR 3516 - 
Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan). 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop strategies for working with the media to provide 
timely and accurate information to students, parents/guardians, and the community during a crisis.  
The Board also recognizes that the media have an important role to play in relaying this 
information to the public.  In order to help ensure that the media and district work together 
effectively, the Superintendent or designee shall develop a crisis communications plan to identify 
communication strategies to be taken in the event of a crisis. or natural disaster.  
(cf. 3516 - Emergency and Disaster Preparedness Plan) 
 
The crisis communications plan may include, but not be limited to, identification of a media center 
location, , strategies for press conference logistics, and development and integration of both 
internal and external notification systems, and strategies for press conference logisticsincluding 
public address systems, social media, web site postings, and text alerts. 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 
(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall include local law enforcement and, media representatives, 
and district technology personnel in the crisis planning process. 



4 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
32210-32212  Willful disturbance of public school or meeting 
35144  Special meetings 
35145  Public meetings 
35160  Authority of governing boards 
35172  Promotional activities 
48907  Freedom of speech and press 
48950  Prohibition against disciplinary action for first amendment speech 
49061  Definition of directory information 
49073  Directory information 
EVIDENCE CODE 
1070  Refusal to disclose news source 
PENAL CODE 
627-627.10  Access to school premises 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1232g  Family educational and privacy rights 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
99.3  Definition of directory information 
COURT DECISIONS 
Lopez v. Tulare Joint Union High School District, (1995) 34 Cal.App.4th 1302 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
9579 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 50958 (1996) 

Management Resources: 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: January 15, 2007 
revised: March 10, 2020 



1 
**NEW** 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Instruction  
BP 6142.2 
 
WORLD LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION 
 

Note:  The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice. 
 
Education Code 51220 requires districts that serve students in grades 7-12 to offer courses in world languages. In 
January 2019, the State Board of Education adopted revised content standards and proficiency levels for world 
languages. The 2003 Foreign Language Framework for California Public Schools does not reflect current content 
standards and is scheduled to be updated in May 2020. 
 
The following policy may be revised by districts that do not maintain any of grades 7-12 to reflect any K-6 
programs designed to develop student's literacy in a language other than English. 

 
In order to prepare students for global citizenship and to broaden their intercultural understanding 
and career opportunities, the Governing Board shall provide students with opportunities to develop 
communicative and cultural proficiency and literacy in one or more world languages. 
 

Note:  The following paragraph may be revised to reflect language courses available in the district. The revised 
state content standards acknowledge the need for the study of a wide variety of languages, and recognize American 
Sign Language as a world language. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall recommend a variety of world languages to be taught in the 
district's educational program based on student interest, community needs, and available resources. 
 
For any program designed to provide students with instruction in a language other than English to 
a degree sufficient to produce proficiency in that language, the Superintendent or designee shall 
establish a process for schools to receive and respond to input from parents/guardians and other 
stakeholders regarding the non-English language in which instruction will be provided.  (5 CCR 
11300, 11312) 
 
If American Sign Language courses are offered, they shall be open to all students regardless of 
hearing status. 
 

Note:  Education Code 51228 requires districts to offer students in grades 7-12 a course of study that fulfills the 
requirements and prerequisites for admission to California colleges and universities; see BP 6143 - Courses of 
Study.  Admissions criteria for California State University and University of California include two years of 
coursework in one language other than English that has been approved by the University of California.  "Frequently 
Asked Questions" in the University of California's A-G Policy Resource Guide, available on its web site, clarify 
that American Sign Language may be used to fulfill the requirement. The following paragraph may be revised by 
districts that do not maintain any of grades 7-12. 

 
The district shall offer a sequential curriculum aligned with the state content standards, state 
curriculum framework, and, as applicable, California university admission requirements for 
languages other than English. 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 



2 
 

 
Instruction in world languages shall be offered to secondary school students beginning no later 
than grade 7 and shall be designed to develop students' skills in understanding, speaking, reading, 
and writing the language.  (Education Code 51220) 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that choose to offer a dual-language immersion 
program and may be revised to reflect district practice.  The Center for Applied Linguistics notes that dual-
language immersion programs are often focused on the primary grades and that such programs may continue for 
five years but optimally throughout grades K-12.  Also see the accompanying administrative regulation. 
 
For further information and recommendations regarding dual-language immersion programs, see CSBA's 
governance brief English Learners in Focus, Issue 2:  The Promise of Two-Way Immersion Programs. 

 
The district may establish a dual-language immersion program that provides integrated language 
learning and academic instruction for native speakers of English and native speakers of another 
language, with the goals of high academic achievement, first and second language proficiency, 
and cross-cultural understanding.  (Education Code 305-306) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 60119, as a condition of receiving funds for instructional materials from any 
state source, the Governing Board is required to hold a public hearing to determine, through a resolution, whether 
each student in the district has sufficient textbooks and/or instructional materials in specified subjects, including 
world language, that are aligned to the state content standards or curriculum frameworks; see BP 6161.1 - Selection 
and Evaluation of Instructional Materials. 

 
The Board shall ensure that students have access to high-quality instructional materials in world 
languages. In accordance with Board policy, teachers shall be encouraged to identify and use 
supplemental resources, such as literature, technology, newspapers and other media, dictionaries, 
and volunteers from the community to enhance the world language instructional program. 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 
(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 
(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials) 
(cf. 6163.1- Library Media Centers) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide professional development as necessary to ensure that 
teachers of world languages have the knowledge and skills they need to implement an effective 
instructional program that helps students attain academic standards, including communicative and 
cultural proficiency and understanding. 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that maintain one or more high schools. Education 
Code 51225.3 requires high school students to complete a one-year course in either world language, which includes 
American Sign Language, or visual and performing arts as a condition of high school graduation; see BP 6146.1 - 
High School Graduation Requirements.  Pursuant to Education Code 51243-51245 and 5 CCR 1632, world 
language instruction completed in a private school must be granted credit toward high school graduation provided 
that the instruction meets specified standards and conditions; see BP/AR 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward 
Graduation. 

 
Students shall obtain credit toward high school graduation requirements for completing one year 
of a world language or American Sign Language course during grades 9-12. 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
(cf. 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation) 



3 
 

 
Note:  A number of districts have chosen to present a biliteracy award upon high school graduation to students 
who demonstrate a high level of proficiency in speaking, reading, and writing skills in one or more languages in 
addition to English. The California Spanish Assessment, which is part of the California Assessment of Student 
Performance and Progress, can be used to measure a student's competency in the Spanish language and is suitable 
for assessing qualifications for the State Seal of Biliteracy. See the California Department of Education's California 
Spanish Assessment Fact Sheet. Also see BP/AR 5126 - Awards for Achievement. 

 
The district shall determine appropriate measures to assess student proficiency in world languages 
offered by district schools. Students who have attained a high level of proficiency may receive 
recognition for their achievement, including the State Seal of Biliteracy for students graduating 
from high school. 
(cf. 5126 - Awards for Achievement) 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph should be revised to reflect indicators agreed upon by the Board and 
Superintendent for evaluating the district's world languages instructional program. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide periodic reports to the Board regarding the 
effectiveness of the district's world language program which may include, but not be limited to, 
whether the district's world language program is serving the grade levels required by law, a 
description of the district's curriculum and the extent to which it is aligned with the state's content 
standards and curriculum framework, student achievement of district standards for world language 
instruction, and student participation rates in each language course.  Program evaluation shall be 
used to identify needed improvements and may be considered in determining the world languages 
to be taught in the district. 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
300-310  Education for English learners 
42238.02  Local control funding formula; class size requirements 
44253.1-44253.11  Qualifications of teachers of English learners 
44256-44257  Credential requirements, including teachers of world language 
48980  Parental notifications 
51212  Legislative intent to encourage world language instruction in grades 1-6 
51220  Courses of study, grades 7-12 
51225.3  High school graduation requirements 
51243-51245  Alternative credits toward graduation for world language instruction in private school 
60119  Public hearings, instructional materials 
60605.3  Content standards for world language instruction 
60605.5  Revision of state standards for world language instruction 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
1632  Alternative credits toward graduation for foreign language instruction in private school 
11300-11316  Multilingual and English learner education 

Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Proposition 58 Regulations, Fact Sheet, August 2018 
English Learners in Focus:  The English Learner Roadmap:  Providing Direction for English Learner 
Success, Governance Brief, February 2018 
English Learners in Focus, Issue 2:  The Promise of Two-Way Immersion Programs, Governance Brief, 
September 2014 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Multilingual FAQ 



4 
 

World Languages Framework for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve 
California Spanish Assessment Fact Sheet, March 2019 
World Languages Standards for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, January 
2019 
California English Learner Roadmap:  Strengthening Comprehensive Educational Policies, Programs and 
Practices for English Learners, 2017 
CENTER FOR APPLIED LINGUISTICS PUBLICATIONS 
Guiding Principles for Dual Language Education, Second Edition, 2007 
COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING PUBLICATIONS 
CL-622  Serving English Learners 
NATIONAL EDUCATION ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS 
21st Century Skills Map:  World Languages, January 2011 
UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA PUBLICATIONS 
A-G Policy Resource Guide 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
American Council on the Teaching of Foreign Languages:  http://www.actfl.org 
California Association  for Bilingual Education:  http://www.gocabe.org 
California Department of Education, World Languages:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/fl 
California Language Teachers' Association:  http://www.clta.net 
California World Language Project:  http://www.stanford.edu/group/CFLP 
Center for Applied Linguistics:  http://www.cal.org 
National Education Association, Partnership for 21st Century Skills:  http://www.nea.org/home/34888.htm 
University of California, A-G Policy Resource Guide:  http://www.ucop.edu/agguide 

 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: March 10, 2020 



1 
**NEW** 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
Instruction  
AR 6142.2 
 
WORLD LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION 
 
Content of Instruction 
 

Note:  Items #1-3 below reflect the three categories of content standards for world languages adopted by the State 
Board of Education in January 2019.  Within each category, the state standards describe four proficiency levels.  
The revised content standards also address information literacy, technology literacy, media literacy, and emotional 
literacy as outlined in the National Education Association's 21st Century Skills Map. 
 
The district may revise the following list to reflect topics addressed in the district's world language program. 

 
The district's instructional program for world languages shall be designed to help students gain 
knowledge about language systems, develop a cultural understanding, and use that knowledge to 
communicate.  Students shall receive instruction which is aligned with state academic standards 
appropriate to their age and stage of linguistic and cultural proficiency in the following categories: 
 
1. Communication:  Students shall be taught to effectively convey and receive messages by 

engaging in or interpreting written, spoken, and/or signed languages, including: 
 
a. Language functions, which describe the purposes to which language is used in 

culturally appropriate real-world communication 
 
b. The setting in which the language is used, which includes using language both 

within and beyond the classroom to interact in local communities and abroad 
 
c. The structures used to convey meaning 
 

2. Cultures:  Students shall receive instruction that allows them to interact, with competence 
and understanding, with those who are native to the language in a variety of real-world 
settings. 
(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 

 
3. Connections:  Students shall receive instruction that builds, reinforces, and expands their 

knowledge of other disciplines using the language to develop critical thinking and problem-
solving skills, and to access and evaluate information and diverse perspectives readily or 
only available through the language and its cultures, in order to function in real-world, 
academic and career-related settings. 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 

 
Dual-Language Immersion Programs 
 

Note:  The following optional section is for use by districts that choose to establish a dual-language immersion 
program integrating native English speakers and English learners in a class that is taught in both English and a 
second language; see the accompanying Board policy. 



2 
 

Items #1-2 below reflect program models described on the California Department of Education's (CDE) web site 
and may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 
The district's dual-language immersion programs may be based on either or both of the following 
models: 
 
1. A 50:50 model in which instruction is provided in the non-English target language for 50 

percent of the time and in English for 50 percent of the time, throughout the duration of the 
program 

 
2. A 90:10 model in which instruction is provided in the non-English target language for 90 

percent of the time and in English for 10 percent of the time during the first year of the 
program, decreasing the percentage of time in the non-English language in each subsequent 
year until there is a 50:50 balance of languages 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 

 
Native English speakers shall generally be admitted into the program only during the first grade 
level at which the program is offered, and English learners during the first or second grade level 
at which the program is offered. Bilingual students may enter the program at any time. On a case-
by-case basis, the Superintendent or designee may admit a student later in the program if it is 
determined that the student is adequately prepared for and will benefit from the program. 
 

Note:  The following paragraph reflects the recommendation of CDE in its "Multilingual FAQ," available on its 
web site, and may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 
In enrolling students for the program, the district shall strive to maintain a ratio of half native 
English speakers and half English learners, and such ratio shall not fall below one-third for either 
language group except under exceptional circumstances. 
 

Note:  The following paragraph may be deleted by districts that do not offer a dual-language immersion program 
in any of grades K-3. 

 
Any dual-language immersion program offered in grades K-3 shall comply with class size 
requirements specified in Education Code 42238.02.  (Education Code 310) 
(cf. 6151 - Class Size) 
 

Note:  Teachers in a class serving one or more English learners are required to possess the qualifications described 
in Education Code 44253.1-44253.11 and CTC leaflet CL-622, Serving English Learners. Also see AR 4112.22 - 
Staff Teaching English Learners. 

 
Whenever one or more English learners are enrolled in a dual-language immersion classroom, the 
class shall be taught by a teacher who possesses the appropriate authorization issued by the 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing. 
(cf. 4112.22 - Staff Teaching English Learners) 
 
At the beginning of each school year or upon a student's enrollment, parents/guardians shall be 
provided information on the district's dual-language immersion program and other language 
acquisition programs available to students enrolled in the district, including, but not limited to, a 
description of each program.  (Education Code 310) 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 



3 
 

 
Note:  Pursuant to 5 CCR 11311, districts are required to establish a process for schools to receive and respond to 
requests from parents/guardians of students enrolled in the school to establish a language acquisition program 
other than, or in addition to, programs available at the school. When the request is for a dual-language immersion 
program, requests from parents/guardians of enrolled students who are native speakers of English shall be 
considered along with requests from parents/guardians of English learners in determining whether the threshold 
has been met to require district response. See AR 6174 - Education for English Learners. 

 
If a school does not currently offer a dual-language immersion program but the parents/guardians 
of 30 or more students at the school, or 20 or more students at the same grade level, request the 
establishment of such a program, the district shall determine whether it is possible to offer such a 
program in accordance with 5 CCR 11311. 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: March 10, 2020 





1 
**Revision** 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Instruction  
BP 6145.6 
 
INTERNATIONAL EXCHANGE 
 

Note:  The following optional policy is for use by districts that maintain secondary schools and accept enrollment 
of international students through approved programs sponsored by an International Student Exchange Placement 
Organization (ISEPO). 
 
The policy does not apply to students who may otherwise meet district residency requirements for school 
attendance or to students whose parents/guardians were California residents who departed against their will, as 
defined in Education Code 48204.4.  See AR 5111.1 - District Residency. 

 
The Governing Board recognizes that personal contactthe value of interactions between students 
of different countries and cultures promotesin promoting global awareness and international 
understanding.  To that end, the in an increasingly globalized and interconnected world.  The Board 
welcomes the enrollment of international exchange students in district schools and further 
encourages district students to take anyadvantage of opportunities that they may have to participate 
in such programs and study in another country. 
 
With Board approval, a district school may establish a sister-school relationship with a school in 
another country. 
 
International Student Exchange Programs 
District Students Studying in Another Country 
 
School counselors may provide information regarding international exchange programs and 
academic counseling to district students who wish to study in a foreign country.  Such counseling 
shall include a review of the student's completed coursework, academic achievement, and personal 
goals, and shall advise the student regarding requirements that the student must meet during 
attendance in the foreign school in order to maintain progress toward meeting district graduation 
requirements. 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 
 
Credit for courses successfully completed in the foreign country shall be granted in accordance 
with Board policy and administrative regulation. 
(cf. 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation) 
 
International Exchange Students in District Schools 
 

Note:  Government Code 12623 requires that any organization that arranges for the placement of international 
exchange students in California schools first be registered with the Attorney General's Office. 
 



2 
 

 

Pursuant to Education Code 35185, a district is authorized to request proof of the registration as a condition to 
enrolling a student. 

 
For the protection of students and to reduce district liability, CSBA strongly recommends that districts check to 
see if a student placement organization is registered in California by reviewing the Registry List maintained by the 
Attorney General's Registry of International Student Exchange Visitor Placement Organizations. See CSBA's 
Legal Guidance Regarding International Student Exchange Placement Organizations for additional 
recommendations and best practices. 
 
In addition, the Council for Standards for International Educational Travel (CSIET), a nonprofit organization 
whose purpose is to identify reputable international exchange programs, annually develops an Advisory List.   
identifying exchange organizations that fully, provisionally, or conditionally meet CSIET standards related to 
financial responsibility, student selection, student orientation, and the placement process. 
 
It is the responsibility of the ISEPO to confirm the eligibility of international students for the exchange program. 
To be eligible, secondary students must (1) have a J-1 or F-1 visa; (2) not have previously attended school in the 
United States through an exchange program or on a J-1 or F-1 visa; and (3) either have not completed more than 
11 years of primary and secondary study in their home country, excluding kindergarten, or be at least 15 years of 
age but not more than 18 years and six months of age as of the program start date. 
 
The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that wish to only accept students participating in programs 
designated by the Attorney General's Office. 

 
Before enrolling an international exchange student in a district school, the Superintendent or 
designee shall request proof that the student is participating in an International Student Exchange 
Placement Organization (ISEPO) program registered with the California Attorney General's 
Office. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall obtain from the ISEPO a description of the services to be 
performed by the ISEPO for the student, host family, and the district; telephone numbers that the 
student, host family, or district may contact for assistance; and a summary of the student's complete 
prior academic coursework completed.  (Government Code 12628; 22 CFR 62.25) 
 
The district may require additional documents which may include, but are not limited to, evidence 
that the student has health and accident insurance from the time of departure from home to the 
time the student returns to the home country.  (11 CCR 360; 22 CFR 62.25) 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph may be used by districts that wish to limit the total number of international 
exchange students admitted into the district. 

 
When necessary because of overcrowding within district schools or limited district resources, the 
Superintendent or designee may limit the number of international exchange students to be accepted 
at any district high school during any school year. 
 
The district shall not incur any financial obligationsobligation when sending and/or 
receivingeducating international exchange students.  Program sponsorsAn international student, 
or the ISEPO on behalf of the student, shall provide assurance of their responsibilityreimburse the 
district for health/accident/liability insurance, the the full, unsubsidized per capita cost of 
providing education at a district school for the period of the visiting student's home 
placement,attendance. 



3 
 

 

(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph may be modified to reflect district practice. Federal and state law do not 
specify a formula for calculating the full, unsubsidized per capita cost of providing education to an international 
student for the purpose of determining the tuition that will be charged. Education Code 48052 identifies factors 
that must be considered in determining the total cost of educating a student who resides in a foreign country 
adjacent to California, which, for consistency, may also serve as a basis for calculating tuition for international 
students. 
 
Alternatively, as described in CSBA's Legal Guidance Regarding International Student Exchange Placement 
Organizations, the district could use the per student amount of the high school base grant provided to districts 
under the local control funding formula, which could be augmented by the amount received by the district for 
separately funded categorical programs and any federal funding received by the district, or could consider its prior 
year per student expenditures. 
 
It is recommended that districts consult with legal counsel in determining such a formula. 

 
In determining the tuition for international exchange students, the district shall calculate the total 
cost of educating the student, including, but not limited to, the amount expended per student for 
the current provision of instruction and services, the use of buildings and equipment, the repayment 
of local bonds and interest payments and state building loan funds, capital outlay, and 
transportation to and from school. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish district criteria for issuing regular or honorary 
diplomas to international exchange students.  The principal or designee shall refer to these criteria 
when assisting international exchange students in selecting classes and cocurricular activities 
based on the student's individual qualifications, needs, and interests. 
(cf. 5127 - Graduation Ceremonies and Activities) 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
(cf. 6146.3 - Reciprocity of Academic Credit) 
 
District staff shall provide relevant counseling to district students who wish to study in a foreign 
country.  District credit 
 for courses successfully completed in the foreign country shall be granted in accordance with 
Board policy and administrative regulation. 
(cf. 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
35160  Authority of governing boards 
35160.1  Broad authority of school districts 
35185  Miscellaneous administrative authority 
48052  Nonresidents 
48204.4  Evidence of residency for school enrollment 
51225.5  Honorary diplomas; foreign exchange students 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
12620-12630 International Student Exchange Visitor Placement Organizations 
87100  General prohibition, conflict of interest 
CALIFORNIA CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 11 
350-384 California Uniform Supervision of International Student Exchange Visitor Placement 
Organizations 



4 
 

 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 8 
214.2  Students in academic high schools 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 22 
62.25  Secondary school students, exchange visitor program 

Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Legal Guidance Regarding International Student Exchange Placement Organizations, 2014 
WEB SITES 
California Attorney General's OfficeCSBA:  http://www.caag.state.ca.uscsba.org 
California Interscholastic Federation:  http://wwwcifstate.org 
California Office of the Attorney General, ISEPO:  https://oag.ca.gov/exchangestudents 
Council on Standards for International Educational Travel:  http://www.csiet.org 
U.S. Department of State, Bureau of Educational and Cultural Affairs:  http://exchanges.state.gov 
U.S. Department of State, Exchange Visitor Program:  http://j1visa.state.gov/programs/secondary-school-
student 
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement:  http://www.ice.gov 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: March 10, 2020 
 



1 
**Revisions** 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
Instruction  
AR 6145.6 
 
INTERNATIONAL EXCHANGE 
 

Note:  The following optional administrative regulation is for use by districts that maintain secondary schools and 
accept enrollment of international students through approved programs sponsored by International Student 
Exchange Placement Organizations. 

 
Admission 
 
Prior to enrolling an international exchange student, the Superintendent or designee shall provide 
the International Student Exchange Placement Organization with written acceptance for the 
enrollment, including arrangements concerning the payment of tuition or the waiver of the tuition 
if applicable.  (11 CCR 361; 22 CFR 62.25) 
(cf. 5111.2 - Nonresident Foreign Students) 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph may be revised to set a date by which the request for enrollment must be 
received. 

 
In order to approve the admission of an international exchange student, the Superintendent or 
designee must receive a written request for enrollment before the end of the preceding school year.  
Enrollment shall be for one year only. 
(cf. 5111.2 - Nonresident Foreign Students) 
 
Enrollment shall be for one semester or one school year.  (22 CFR 62.25) 
 
All international exchange students shall meet state and district immunization requirements.   
(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 
(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations) 
 
Athletics 
 

Note:  State bylaws of the California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) list eligibility requirements for participation 
by international exchange students in interscholastic athletics. These requirements include, but are not limited to, 
requiring that the student has been placed with a host family by an exchange program accepted for listing by the 
Council for Standards for International Educational Travel and approved by the CIF, California Attorney General's 
Office, and U.S. Department of State.  Individual CIF section bylaws may have additional requirements. 

 
International exchange students shall be eligible for participation in interscholastic sports in 
accordance with state bylaws of the California Interscholastic Federation as well as applicable 
section bylaws.   
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 



2 
 

 

 
Diplomas 
 
International exchange students may be considered for a diploma if they have satisfactorily 
completed the district's graduation requirements. 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
(cf. 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation) 
(cf. 6146.3 - Reciprocity of Academic Credit) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 51225.5, the Governing Board may grant an honorary diploma to international 
exchange students who have completed the course of study required for graduation and are returning to their home 
countries following completion of one school year.  Honorary diplomas must be distinguishable from the district's 
regular diploma. See BP 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements. 
 
The following optional paragraph provides standards for the granting of the honorary diploma and should be 
revised to reflect district practice. 

 
International exchange students who are not eligible for a regular diploma may receive an honorary 
diploma, provided they have completed at least one semester of full-time enrollment and achieved 
at least a 2.0 grade point average. 
(cf. 5127 - Graduation Ceremonies and Activities) 
 
At the discretion of the principal or designee, internationalInternational exchange students who do 
not meet requirements for a regular or an honorary diploma may, at the end of their visit, be given 
a certificate or letter certifying the time period for which they were enrolled as well as a transcript 
documenting their completed coursework. 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 
revised: March 10, 2020 



Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Instruction  
BP 6142.12 
 
GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS/STANDARDS OF PROFICIENCY – ADULT 
EDUCATION 
 
Graduation from Sierra County Adult Education implies that students have satisfactorily 
completed the prescribed courses of study in accordance with their respective abilities to achieve, 
that they have satisfactorily passed any examinations and other requirements set by the faculty, 
and standards of proficiency as required by law and local policies. 
 
It is expected that the instructional staff will apply measures of achievement to provide evidence 
that each student has progressed far enough toward school goals and objectives to warrant 
graduation according to paragraph one above. It is also expected that students will achieve at 
levels, which compare well with other graduates from Adult Education Programs in the state and 
nation.   
 
District Competency Requirements 
 
Beginning with the graduating class of 20182020, district competency requirements will align 
with the minimum state requirements. Also, students must demonstrate "proficiency" in 
computer skills.  
 
They may demonstrate computer proficiency in the following ways: 
 
* Take and pass specific classes designed to teach computer skills; 
 
* Demonstrate their ability to use technology to locate and manage information as a part of one 
or more of their classes. 
 
No student shall receive a diploma of graduation from Sierra County Adult Education who has 
not completed: 
 

1. At least the following number of courses in the subjects specified, each course having a 
duration of one year: 

 
a. Three courses in English; 

 
b. Two courses in mathematics. Beginning with the graduating class of 2004 and 

thereafter, all students in grades 7-12, and/or Adult Education, must have taken a 
course or a combination of two courses whose content meets or exceeds the rigor of 
the content standards for Algebra I that are adopted by the State Board of Education; 

 
c. Two courses in science, including one life and one physical science; 

 



d. Three courses in social studies, including United States history and geography; world 
history, culture and geography; and American government, civics and economics; 

 
e. One in visual or performing arts (the requirement could be met with one semester of 

each for a total of one year) or one year of a foreign language or one year of career 
technical education 

 
f. Two courses in physical education unless the student has been exempted pursuant to 

Education Code provisions. 
 

2. Other courses required by the governing board: 
 

a. Health (or completion of another course containing those standards) 
 

b. Career Education 
 

3. The total credits required for graduation from Sierra County Adult Education are 185140. 
These 185140 credits include all of the requirements above plus electives. 

 
The requirements for graduation and specified alternative modes for completing the prescribed 
course of study shall be made available to students, parents and the public. 
(cf. 5122.1 - Choice of Studies/Academic Load) 
(cf. 6172.3 - Continuation Education) 
 
In accordance with California Education Code 51225.3(b), Sierra County Office of Education 
has also adopted an alternative high school diploma pathway known as the National External 
Diploma Program (NEDP) that is competency based. 
 
Review of Graduation Requirements 
 
At a minimum of every three years district policy related to local curriculum requirements, 
course content, and course sequence shall be reviewed against the standards adopted by the State 
Board of Education. 
 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
48430 Continuation education schools and classes 
48431.6 Program of review and counseling of academic progress at age 16 or 10th grade 
51220 Adopted courses of study grades 7-12 
51215-51217 Student progress, elementary and secondary schools (re: standards of proficiency); differential 
standards 
51222 Required physical education instruction 
51224.5 Instruction in Algebra 
51225.3 Course of study mandated for graduation commencing with the 1986-87 school year 
51226 Review by governing board of local curriculum at least every three years 
51241-51242 Physical education requirement exemptions 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: March 10, 2020 



Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Exhibit 
Business and Noninstructional Operations 
E 3260  
 
Fees And Charges 
 
 
COPIES OF PUBLIC RECORDS 
 
The Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Office shall be open normal business hours 
Monday through Friday, except holidays and days approved by the Board of Education. 
 
Any person wishing to inspect or copy a public record shall submit a request for such inspection 
or copy. District Office personnel are authorized to provide copies of public records at the 
following rates: 
 
Photocopies   $.25 per page 
Fax    $1.00 first page 
Fax    $.25 after first page 
Computer Data  $15.00 an hour 
Other Non-Written Material $15.00 an hour 
Agenda, printed  $1.00 per document, $12 per year 
Minutes, printed  $1.00 per document, $12 per year 
Agenda Complete Packets $20.00 per package, $240 per year 
Warrant Lists, printed  $10.00 per list 
 
TRANSCRIPTS 
 
The District may make a reasonable charge in an amount not to exceed the actual cost of 
furnishing copies of any pupil record; provided, however, that no charge shall be made for 
furnishing up to two transcripts of former pupils’ records or up to two verifications of various 
records of former pupil. No charge may be made to search for or to retrieve any pupil record. 
(Education Code 49065) 
 
After two copies have been issued transcripts will be $3.00 per copy thereafter. 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Exhibit version: March 10, 2009  
revised: December 13, 2011 
revised: March 10, 2020 


